
BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES 

Michelle Draper 
Board Chair  

Bridget Stirling 
Board Vice-Chair 

Sherry Adams 
Shelagh Dunn 
Trisha Estabrooks 
Ken Gibson 
Nathan Ip 
Michael Janz 
Cheryl Johner 

Edmonton School District No. 7 
One Kingsway 

Edmonton, Alberta 
McCauley Chambers 

Board Meeting #09 Tuesday, April 10, 2018 
2:00 p.m. 

A.  O Canada 

B.  Roll Call 

C.  Approval of the Agenda 

D.  Communications from the Board Chair 

E.  Communications from the Superintendent of Schools 

F.  Minutes: 

1. DRAFT – Board Meeting #08  – March 20, 2018

G.  Comments from the Public and Staff Group Representatives 
(NOTE:  Pre-registration with the Board Office [780-429-8443] is required by 
4:30 p.m. on Monday, April 9, 2018, to speak under this item.)  

H.  Reports: 

2. Report #4 of the Special Caucus Committee (From the meeting held March
20, 2018)
(Information)

3. Strategic Plan Update: Priority 1 Goal One:  An Excellent Start to Learning
(Information)

4. Motion re:  Shared Approach to Curriculum Implementation to Alberta
Education – Next Steps
(Recommendation)

5. 2019-20 School Year Calendar
(Recommendation)

6. Lower Cost or No Cost Transportation
(Information – Response to Request for Information #015)

7. Bereavement
(Information)

I.  Other Committee, Board Representative and Trustee Reports 

J.  Trustee and Board Requests for Information 
 

Page 1 of 50 of the April 10, 2018 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



K.  Notices of Motion 
  

L.  Meeting Dates 
  

M.  Adjournment 
 

Page 2 of 50 of the April 10, 2018 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 
 
 

  

Edmonton School District No. 7 

 
 

MINUTE BOOK 

1 
March 20, 2018 

 

Board Meeting #08 
 
Minutes of the Board Meeting of the Trustees of the Edmonton School District No. 7 of the 
Province of Alberta held in McCauley Chambers in the Centre for Education on  
Tuesday, March 20, 2018 at 2:00 p.m. 
 
Present: 

 
 

Trustees 
 

 

Sherry Adams 
Shelagh Dunn 

Michelle Draper 

Trisha Estabrooks 
Ken Gibson 
Nathan Ip 

Cheryl Johner 
Bridget Stirling 

   
 Officials  
   

Angela Anderson 
Lisa Austin 

Grace Cooke 
Todd Burnstad 
Ron MacNeil 

Karen Mills 
Leona Morrison 

Kathy Muhlethaler 
Kent Pharis 

Darrel Robertson 

Mike Suderman 
Liz Yule 

 
Board Chair:   Michelle Draper  Recording Secretary:  Shirley Juneau 
 
The Board Chair called the meeting to order with recognition that we are on Treaty 6 Territory, a 
traditional meeting grounds, gathering place, and travelling route to the Cree, Saulteaux, 
Blackfoot, Métis, Dene and Nakota Sioux.  We acknowledge all the many First Nations, Métis, and 
Inuit whose footsteps have marked these lands for centuries. 
 
The Board Chair advised that the fire alarm system at the Centre for Education is a Two Stage 
alarm system.  Stage One is a single repeating alarm tone indicating a warning only and that 
evacuation is not required.  Stage Two is a triple repeating alarm tone indicating that evacuation is 
required. 
 
The Board Chair advised those attending the meeting in person that the floor area is restricted to 
the Board of Trustees, Superintendent, Director of Board and Superintendent Relations and 
Recording staff, with an area reserved for media.  She advised that she would signify to any other 
staff or registered speakers to come down to the floor at the designated time on the agenda.  The 
Board Chair thanked everyone for their cooperation. 
 
A.    O Canada    
 
B.  Roll Call:  (2:05 p.m.) 

Page 3 of 50 of the April 10, 2018 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 
 
 

  

Edmonton School District No. 7 

 
 

MINUTE BOOK 

2 
March 20, 2018 

 

 
The Superintendent advised that Trustee Janz was absent.  All other Trustees were present. 
 
C.  Recognition   
   
  1. Robert C. Clark Award 
 
The Robert C. Clark award recognizes an individual, group, or organization that has contributed 
significantly to advancing access to information in Alberta.   
 
Ms. Jill Clayton, Information and Privacy Commissioner, presented Ms Maryann Hammermeister, 
FOIP Coordinator, the 2017-2018 Robert C. Clark award. 
 
D. Approval of the Agenda 
 
The Board Chair requested that agenda Item 7:   Motion re:  First School Built in New Community 
be removed due to the absence of Trustee Janz.  
 
MOVED BY Trustee Johner: 
 “That the agenda for the March 20, 2018, Board meeting be approved as amended.”  

(UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED) 
 
E. Communications from the Board Chair 
 
The Board Chair advised that March 21st is the International Day for the Elimination of Racial 
Discrimination.  She shared the 2018 theme is to promote tolerance, inclusion, unity and respect 
for diversity in the context of combating racial discrimination.  She remarked that this day reminds 
every one of the collective responsibility in promoting and protecting this ideal. 
 
The Board Chair reported that she attended the Speech from the Throne on March 8, 2018, and is 
interested in the provincial budget announcements coming forward on March 22, 2018.  The 
Board Chair remarked that the District’s infrastructure needs continue to be great, in terms of the 
necessity for new school builds, especially another high school and the deferred maintenance on 
existing infrastructure.  She said this government needs to continue to prioritize investments into 
education to meet the growing complexities in classrooms and ensure adequate funding exists to 
support great learning environments for students.  
 
The Board Chair shared that on March 12, 2018, the Shaw Conference Centre was full of chefs, 
coaches, student teams and supporters and several of the Trustees that cheered on the teams 
that participated in the High School Culinary Challenge. 
She advised that the culinary team from Harry Ainlay High School defeated 14 other teams to take 
gold at the High School Culinary Challenge Awards dinner and bronze went to Queen Elizabeth 
High School.  She explained that teams competed by cooking a three-course meal on  

Page 4 of 50 of the April 10, 2018 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 
 
 

  

Edmonton School District No. 7 

 
 

MINUTE BOOK 

3 
March 20, 2018 

 

February 10, 2018, inside NAIT’s kitchens and were judged on preparation, timing, sanitation, 
presentation and, of course, taste.   
 
The Board Chair shared that a member of the M.E. LaZerte Team was awarded one of four 
scholarships to attend NAIT’s culinary apprenticeship program, where students benefit from 
learning on the job with some of the area’s top chefs. 
 
F. Communications from the Superintendent of Schools 
 
The Superintendent advised parents of students currently enrolled at Edmonton Public Schools 
that pre-enrolment is available through SchoolZone until April 16, 2018. 
 
The Superintendent reported that the Strathcona Initiative Bike-a-thon raised over $518,000 in 
support of Earth Group.  He shared that this money will provide 100,000 meals for the needy in 
the Edmonton area and over a million meals for the United Nations World Food Program.  He 
said that in addition to the money raised, 8032 pounds of food was collected for the Edmonton 
Food Bank.  The Superintendent explained that the initiative took about a year to plan and that 
it was led by teachers Tom Yonge and Jane Grant, involved 1300 students, almost all the staff, 
lots of alumni and community members including Trustee Estabrooks.   
 
The Superintendent wished all District staff, parents and students a safe and energizing Spring 
Break. He said that he knows everyone has been working very hard, and that the break will be a 
great chance to rejuvenate as everyone heads into the last months of this school year.  
 
G. Minutes 
 
 2.  Board Meeting #07 – March 6, 2018 
 
MOVED BY Trustee Estabrooks: 
 “That the minutes of Board Meeting # 07 held March 6, 2018, be approved as 

printed.”  (UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED) 
 
H.  Comments from the Public and Staff Group Representatives 
 
There were no registered speakers for this item. 
 
I. Reports 
 
 3.  Report # 3 of the Caucus Committee (From the meeting held March 6, 2018) 
 
Information was received regarding actions taken at the March 6, 2018, Caucus Committee 
meeting. 
 

Page 5 of 50 of the April 10, 2018 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 
 
 

  

Edmonton School District No. 7 

 
 

MINUTE BOOK 

4 
March 20, 2018 

 

 4.   Edmonton Student Transportation Authority (ESTA) 
 
An update was provided as a follow up to the approved motion on January 23, 2018.  Student 
transportation administration from Edmonton Catholic Schools and Edmonton Public Schools 
jurisdictions have met. The two parties are setting ESTA aside and pursuing a more informal 
shared transportation arrangement to expand shared bus routes and find efficiencies. Work is 
ongoing and administration has identified 20 routes where buses can be used by both jurisdictions 
effective September 2018. While students will ride separately, the busses operating on these 
routes will be shared and the costs and efficiencies will be split between the parties. 
 
Trustee Gibson requested that the actual costs of the shared transportation agreement be 
included in the fall Board report. 
 
 5.  Three-Year Capital Plan for 2019-2022 
 
MOVED BY Trustee Ip: 
 “That the proposed capital priorities for modernizations and new construction identified 

in the Three-Year Capital Plan 2019–2022 be approved.” 
  
MOVED BY Trustee Ip: 
 “That the proposed capital priorities for modernizations and new construction identified 

in the Three-Year Capital Plan 2019–2022 be amended.” 
 

(Excerpt from Page 30 of 95 of the March 20, 2018, consolidated Board meeting package) 

Priority 
2019–2022 Aggregated Priorities Capacity Sector Cost (millions) 

Year 1     

1 The Meadows High School 10–12 – Phase 
I 

1,800* HS $79 

2 
Westlawn Cluster: Concept 2 
Space for Students in Mature 
Communities 

1,150 W1 
$25  

(of $40**) 

3 Chappelle East K–9  750* SW $28 

4 Keswick K–9  950 SW $31 

5 - 7 Delton Replacement K–6 650 C $17 

6 - 8 Spruce Avenue Replacement 7-9 450 C $15 

7 - 5 Glenridding Heights 10–12 – Phase I  1,600 HS $58 

Page 6 of 50 of the April 10, 2018 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 
 
 

  

Edmonton School District No. 7 

 
 

MINUTE BOOK 

5 
March 20, 2018 

 

8 - 6 Queen Elizabeth 
Modernization/Replacement 

Replacement or 
Modernization HS TBD 

The Board Chair called the question on the Amendment. 
IN FAVOUR:  Trustees Ip and Johner 
OPPOSED:  Trustees Adams, Dunn, Draper, Estabrooks, Gibson and Stirling 
(DEFEATED) 
 
The Board Chair called the question on the Motion. 
IN FAVOUR:  Trustees Adams, Dunn, Draper, Estabrooks, Gibson, Johner and Stirling 
OPPOSED:  Trustee Ip 
(CARRIED) 
 
Trustee Gibson suggested that the District consider a block funding model.  The Superintendent 
advised that exploring block funding is one of the priorities of the District’s Infrastructure 
Committee.  The Superintendent remarked that assistance from the Board of Trustees’ in 
advocating for block funding would be greatly appreciated. 
 
There was a short break in the meeting. 
 
 6.  Motion re:  Early Development Instrument Program and Early Childhood 

Coalitions 
 
Trustee Ip advised that funding will be continued until March 31, 2019. 
 
Trustee Ip deferred the following motion to a future Board meeting 
 
MOVED BY Trustee Ip: 
 “That the Edmonton Public School Board write a letter to the Government of Alberta in 

support of continued funding for the Early Development Instrument Program and the 
Early Childhood Coalitions across Alberta.” 

  
 7.  Motion re First School Built in New Community 
 
This report was removed from the agenda due to the movers absence. 
 
 8.  Bereavement 
 
The Vice-Chair reported on the passing of Ms Mary-Ann Grimes. 
 
J. Other Committee, Board Representative and Trustee Reports 
 

Page 7 of 50 of the April 10, 2018 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 
 
 

  

Edmonton School District No. 7 

 
 

MINUTE BOOK 

6 
March 20, 2018 

 

Trustee Adams reported that on March 7, 2018, she attended the Alberta School Boards 
Association (ASBA) session for leaders.  Topics regarding Governance as Reconciliation, 
Recognition and Respect - Understanding the Indigenous Perspective were discussed. The 
sessions included a very thorough presentation of the origin and content of the Indian Act, the 
struggle for the return and recognition of Aboriginal and Treaty rights and a strategy for 
implementing inherent right of governance.          
 
Trustee Adams advised that on March 15, several Trustees from across Zone 2/3 met with a 
number of MLAs to advocate for the need for schools.  Trustee Adams said that it was a 
privilege to advocate on behalf of the Board of Trustees the pressing need for funding for 
mental health, transportation, early education, and the critical need for high schools in 
Edmonton. She said it was an opportunity to connect with parents and staff within schools and 
to keep the needs of the District’s students before MLAs. 
 
Trustee Draper reported that on March 8, 2018, she attended the second McConachie School 
visioning session, where the plans for the school were unveiled.  She commented that the 
proposed design was met with great enthusiasm by parents and community members.  She 
thanked everyone involved. 
 
Trustee Draper reported that on March 16, 2018, she attended the Northeast Christian School 
Council meeting and the Kildare School Council meeting on March 19, 2018.  She said that she 
appreciates the invitations from schools to come out and attend school council meetings as it is a 
great opportunity to connect and collect valuable input from parents and school staff. 
 
Trustee Dunn shared that it was her first time attending the District’s Night of Music.  She 
commented how impressed she was by the talent of the students and their teachers. Trustee 
Dunn commented that it was a wonderful showcase of the music learning occurring in District 
schools.   
 
Trustee Dunn reported that she attended the School Council meeting at Edmonton Christian 
West, learning about the adventures on their school’s winter camping trip and the excitement 
as they plan for a new school building funded through the society. 
 
Trustee Dunn reported that she attended the School Council meeting at Glenora School, and 
that she learned about the amazing initiatives being undertaken at the school including a 
student maker space. She shared that she admires the parent group and their advocacy for the 
needs of the school community while the city undertakes planning for the West LRT. 
 
Trustee Estabrooks thanked community members, neighbours of Rundle School, Minister Deron 
Bilous and District staff for the Rundle meet and greet held earlier in the week. She commented 
that it was exciting to see the wide range of courses offered at Rundle School through Metro 
Education.  
 

Page 8 of 50 of the April 10, 2018 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 
 
 

  

Edmonton School District No. 7 

 
 

MINUTE BOOK 

7 
March 20, 2018 

 

Trustee Estabrooks reported that she had opportunities to visit a number of schools in Ward D in 
the last two weeks: 
She advised that she will be on an upcoming episode of the Highlands School podcast that is all 
about chess.   
 
Trustee Estabrooks spent the morning with Grade 6 students at Hardisty School talking about local 
government.  
 
Trustee Estabrooks participated in the Strathcona School Bike-a-thon that raised more than half a 
million dollars in support of Earth Group, the Edmonton Food Bank as well as the United Nations 
World Food Program.    
 
Trustee Estabrooks thanked the organizers of the High School Culinary Challenge that was held at 
the Shaw Conference Centre. She noted that it was a great event that showcased the culinary skills 
of District high school students. Trustee Estabrooks thanked the McNally students and their 
culinary teacher, Jody Kachka, for the invitation to join them. 
 
Trustee Estabrooks shared that she had the honour of bringing greetings on behalf of the Board of 
Trustees to the McNally Night of Music which was held at the Winspear Centre for Music.  She 
congratulated the seven music teachers who made this dream a reality and the hundreds of 
students who performed.  
 
Trustee Johner reported on upcoming Edmonton Public Schools Foundation events: 
The 8th Annual Student Fashion Show will be held on April 19, 2018 from 7-9 p.m. at the Kingsway 
Mall.   She explained that the event will be showcasing the amazing clothing design talents of the 
Fashion Studies students from Harry Ainlay, Jasper Place, L.Y. Cairns, M.E. LaZerte, Ross Sheppard 
and W.P. Wagner schools. Trustee Johner shared that three piece design collections will reflect the 
theme: Rock the Runway.  She said that the fashion show will also have Kindergarten students 
from John A. McDougall School walking the runway and to top off the evening, there will be a 
special guest performance by local singer-songwriter Martin Kerr. 
 
Trustee Johner invited everyone to the annual Ready for Life Fundraising Event on May 4, 2018, at 
John D. Bracco School.  She explained the event is to raise awareness and funds to support full-day 
Kindergarten programs for children who attend schools in socially vulnerable neighbourhoods and 
come to the classroom at a disadvantage.   
 
Trustee Johner reported that on March 8, 2018, she attended the ELEVATE Aviation tour and 
speaker series.  She explained that this event was designed to encourage women to enter the 
aviation industry. Trustee Johner said that some of the women speakers were pilots, aviation 
mechanics, airport maintenance and technology staff and air traffic controllers.  She advised that 
the District offers Aviation 35 at J. Percy Page High School. 
 

Page 9 of 50 of the April 10, 2018 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 
 
 

  

Edmonton School District No. 7 

 
 

MINUTE BOOK 

8 
March 20, 2018 

 

Trustee Johner reported that Queen Elizabeth High School is teaching and training students about 
solar panels and she attended the training where she had an opportunity to use a software 
program showing her how to position solar panels on a roof. 
  
Trustee Stirling reported that on March 6, 2018, she had the opportunity to be a part of the 
second visioning meeting for the new junior high school in Larkspur. She shared that it was 
exciting to see so many families, community members, and Edmonton Public teachers and 
principals from the area present to share their enthusiasm for the new school and how well the 
community input from the first session was included in the initial plan.  Trustee Stirling thanked 
the District’s Infrastructure and Community Engagement staff, architects and construction 
contractor staff who continue to work so hard to turn the vision for this new school into a 
reality. 
 
Trustee Stirling thanked the School Council at W.P. Wagner for welcoming her to their meeting 
on March 14, 2018, for some great conversations about supporting student success, program 
planning in high school, and space for students in southeast Edmonton. She commented that 
parents were also excited about the new STEAM (Science, Technology, Engineering, Arts, and 
Math) option coming to W.P. Wagner. 
 
Trustee Stirling reminded everyone about the joint Mill Woods Trustee Night that she and 
Trustee Adams will be co-hosting at Ekota School on April 18, 2018, at 7:00 pm. Trustee Stirling 
encouraged families and community members to come meet their Trustees, ask questions, and 
learn more about the work of the Board of Trustees. She thanked the Ekota School Council for 
their help in organizing this event. 
 
K. Trustee and Board Requests for Information  
 
Trustee Dunn remarked that one of the Board’s Cornerstone Values is equity.  In light of this 
value, it is important to make sure that a lack of access to transportation is not a barrier for 
school attendance.  What measures does the District have in place for low-income families to 
access lower-cost or no-cost transportation services, both for yellow bus service and Edmonton 
Transportation System?  
 
L. Notices of Motion  
 
Trustee Gibson served notice that he will make a motion that the Board of Trustees act on the 
advocacy points contained in the September 12, 2017, Board report entitled Shared Approach 
to Curriculum Implementation to Alberta Education. 
 
M. Next Board Meeting:  Tuesday, April 10, 2018, at 2:00 p.m. 
 
N.    Adjournment:  4:45 p.m. 
 

Page 10 of 50 of the April 10, 2018 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 
 
 

  

Edmonton School District No. 7 

 
 

MINUTE BOOK 

9 
March 20, 2018 

 

 
The Board Chair adjourned the meeting. 
 
 
 
 

   
Michelle Draper, Board Chair  Karen Mills, Director of Board and 

Superintendent Relations 
       
 
  
 

Page 11 of 50 of the April 10, 2018 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



Information Report 

 

 
 

 
DATE: April 10, 2018 
 
TO:  Board of Trustees 
 
FROM: Trustee Bridget Stirling, Caucus Committee Chair 
 
SUBJECT: Report #4 of the Special Caucus Committee (From the meeting held March 20, 2018) 
 
ORIGINATOR: Karen Mills, Director Board and Superintendent Relations 
 
REFERENCE: Trustees’ Handbook – Caucus Committee - Section 5.4 
  Trustees’ Handbook – Section 6 – Board Committees 
  School Act – Section 61 
 
 
ISSUE 
The Board approved the following recommendations at the March 3, 2015, Board meeting:  That a 
resolution be approved directing that Section 5.4 of the Trustees’ Handbook be revised to give the 
Caucus Committee final decision-making power on certain types of matters, and yet constrain that 
power so it is used only when absolutely necessary.  
 
The following recommendations were approved at the March 20, 2018, Special Caucus Committee 
meeting: 
 
1.   That authorization for the Superintendent to proceed with the utilization of up to $2,475,000 of 

Capital Reserve funds to acquire six modular classrooms be approved.  
 
BACKGROUND  
Given the late funding announcement from the Province and an emergent need to determine whether 
Capital Reserve funds could be accessed to acquire six new modular classrooms required to 
accommodate students for the 2018–2019 school year, the recommendation noted above was 
presented to the Caucus Committee for deliberation. 
 
2. Three names for new schools be approved. 
 
BACKGROUND  
The provincial government approved three new school construction projects in 2017. Names must be 
chosen for these new schools, located in Heritage Valley (10-12), Larkspur (7-9) and McConachie (K-6). 
The process for selecting names for these schools is taking place during the early phase of design so that 
elements of the chosen name may be incorporated into the design of the school and will support the 
development of a unique identity for each school community. 
 
The three names will be formally announced on May 8, 2018, at the public Board meeting. 
 
 
 
KM:sj 

Page 12 of 50 of the April 10, 2018 Consolidated Board Meeting Package

http://www.epsb.ca/media/epsb/ourdistrict/policies/TrusteesHandbook2017-2021asofNovember2017.pdf
http://www.epsb.ca/media/epsb/ourdistrict/policies/TrusteesHandbook2017-2021asofNovember2017.pdf
http://www.qp.alberta.ca/documents/acts/s03.pdf


1 

Strategic Plan Update Report 

DATE: April 10, 2018 

TO:  Board of Trustees 

FROM: Darrel Robertson, Superintendent of Schools 

SUBJECT: Strategic Plan Update: Priority 1 Goal One: An Excellent Start to Learning 

ORIGINATOR: Nancy Petersen, Managing Director, Strategic District Supports 

RESOURCE 
STAFF: Haydn Avery-Sanchez, Tricia Giles-Wang, Bob Morter, Tracy Poulin, Natalie 

Prytuluk, David Sloan, Allison Sylvester, Jodi Tauber 

ISSUE 
The purpose of this Strategic Plan Update report is to provide the Board of Trustees with an overview 
of efforts being taken in support of Priority 1, Goal One: An Excellent Start to Learning with the 
outcome of more children entering Grade 1 reaching emotional, social, intellectual and physical 
developmental milestones.  

BACKGROUND 
In 2014, Edmonton Public Schools formally launched its District Strategic Plan for the 2014–2018 term. 
The District Strategic Plan has three priority areas with supporting goals and outcomes. The plan 
provides common direction and alignment between the work of the Board of Trustees, the 
Superintendent of Schools and District staff. The plan serves as the foundation for a District culture of 
evidence-based decision making, assurance and accountability.  

To demonstrate the District’s commitment to transparency and accountability, Strategic Plan Update 
reports were introduced in 2016–2017 as an extension of the Annual Education Results Report (AERR). 
The reports are intended to provide the Board of Trustees with detailed progress towards the goals and 
outcomes of our Strategic Plan.  

CURRENT SITUATION 
This Strategic Plan Update report reflects the work of schools and central services in support of high 
quality early childhood programming and the success of our youngest learners and is in direct response 
to Priority 1 Goal One of the 2014-2018 District Strategic Plan.  

KEY POINTS 
Strategic Plan Update reports, introduced in 2016–2017, provide an extension of the AERR. 

The attached report is focused on the District’s work in support of high quality Early Years programming 
to help more children reach developmental milestones to be ready for Grade 1.   

ATTACHMENTS and APPENDICES 
ATTACHMENT I Strategic Plan Update: Priority 1 Goal One: An Excellent Start to Learning 

NP:mh 

Page 13 of 50 of the April 10, 2018 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

 

 
 

Attachment I 
  

Strategic Plan 
Update: 
Priority 1 Goal One: An Excellent 
Start to Learning 
 

April 10, 2018  

Page 14 of 50 of the April 10, 2018 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

 
1 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Introduction  ............................................................................................................................................................... 2 

Importance of the Early Years ................................................................................................................................... 3 

Learning Through Play ............................................................................................................................................... 3 

Early Years Programs ................................................................................................................................................. 5 

Pre-Kindergarte, Kindergarten and Full-day Kindergarten ........................................................................................ 6 

 Pre-Kindergarten .......................................................................................................................................... 6 

 From Pilot to Program ..................................................................................................................... 7 

 Pre-Kindergarten Coding Chart........................................................................................................ 8 

 Pre-Kindergarten Locations and Program Cluster Model ................................................................ 9 

 Access to and Awareness of Pre-Kindergarten Programs for Families.......................................... 11 

 Pre-Kindergarten Screenings ......................................................................................................... 12 

 Centralized Supports for Pre-Kindergarten Model: Placement and Transportation ..................... 13 

 How Do We Know our Pre-Kindergarten Model is Effecitve? ....................................................... 14 

 Kindergarten ............................................................................................................................................... 14 

 Full-day Kindergarten ................................................................................................................................. 15 

Early Years Evaluation–TeacherAssessment (EYE-TA) ............................................................................................. 17 

Incluisve Learning School-Linked Teams ................................................................................................................. 19 

 Profile of Kindergarten Children ................................................................................................................. 19 

Early Years Initiatives ............................................................................................................................................... 20 

 Supporting Children who are not yet Meeting Developmental Milestones .............................................. 20 

 Language and Literacy Project ....................................................................................................... 20 

 MILE Study ..................................................................................................................................... 21 

 Initiatives That Support Families ................................................................................................................ 21 

 Welcome to the Early Years: Building Parent Capacity Project ..................................................... 21 

 First Nations, Métis, and Inuit Family Liaison ................................................................................ 22 

 Initiatives That Support High Quality Early Years Programming ................................................................ 22 

 Early Years Resources and Professional Learning .......................................................................... 22 

 Inquiry and Play Community of Practice ........................................................................................ 22 

 First Nations, Métis, and Inuit Resources and Professional Learning ............................................ 22 

 Forest and Nature School: Building Positive Mental Health .......................................................... 23 

 Hanen Training ............................................................................................................................... 24 

Conclusion: Counting the Next Steps ...................................................................................................................... 24 

References ............................................................................................................................................................... 25 

  

Page 15 of 50 of the April 10, 2018 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

 
2 

 

INTRODUCTION  
The Early Years Strategic Plan Update report provides the Board of Trustees with an overview of work being taken 
to help more children experience success as they enter Grade 1 and beyond. These efforts reflect the work of 
schools, multiple central units and key community partners whose expertise and mandate support early years 
services and programming. 
 
This report focuses on data, research and evidence-based initiatives in direct support of high quality early years 
programming. The District’s work in the area of the early years have been informed by research and the findings 
from the early years pilot, reflect the collaboration between schools and central staff and strive to be responsive 
to a growing and increasingly complex preschool population in the city of Edmonton. The report highlights the 
following areas: 
 

• importance of the early years 
• learning through play 
• District Early Years Programs with a focus on the Pre-Kindergarten model 
• Early Years Evaluation-Teacher Assessment (EYE-TA) data 
• the work of Inclusive Learning 
• an overview of various early years initiatives that inform quality early years programming 

 
The report concludes with highlights of additional opportunities or initiatives occurring in the District that 
promote quality early years programming. By broadening and deepening the work in the early years to include a 
focus on positive mental health, family engagement, high quality teaching and leadership, and school, central and 
community collaboration, our District will continue to strengthen support for our youngest learners, including 
those children who benefit most from early intervention.   
 
 

 
 
 

Page 16 of 50 of the April 10, 2018 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

 
3 

 

IMPORTANCE OF THE EARLY YEARS 
Research in the field of early childhood provides compelling evidence that the early years are an important time in 
children’s lives to build a supportive foundation for future skill development, well-being and lifelong learning. 
These studies demonstrate that there are long term benefits of investing in high quality early childhood programs 
which positively impact outcomes for children, family and society. Meta-analyses of a multitude of studies in early 
childhood (Alexander & Ignjatovic; 2012; Center on the Developing Child, 2009; OECD, 2017) show that attending 
a high quality early childhood program is a strong predictor of: 
 

• improved social, emotional, cognitive, numeracy and language development 
• improved physical and mental health outcomes throughout life including reduction in smoking, alcohol 

and drug use, crime and welfare 
• reduced dropout rates, on time graduation and higher post-secondary attendance 
• better preparation and transition into Kindergarten and Grade 1 with fewer children accessing special 

education funding or requiring specialized programming later on 
• poverty reduction, increased equity in children’s learning outcomes and increased social mobility from 

generation to generation 
 
The evidence is clear: early childhood matters a great deal and high quality early childhood education can result in 
better outcomes later in life. The research also clearly articulates what characteristics of a program constitute 
high quality early childhood programming that result in improved outcomes for children (Center on the 
Developing Child, 2007). These are: 
 

• warm and responsive adult-child interactions 
• learning through play and inquiry 
• safe physical setting 
• language-rich environment 
• qualified staff 
• small group/class sizes and high adult-child ratios 
• effective interventions to address specific developmental challenges 
• developmentally appropriate “curriculum” 

 
From 2014-2015 to the present school year, Early Years programming in Edmonton Public Schools has evolved in 
response to what current research tells us about high quality programming and is expanding to meet the demand 
of a growing population of families with young children. These deliberate efforts of the past four years support 
the District’s Strategic Plan - Priority 1, Goal One: An excellent start to learning. This work is comprised of three 
early childhood programs: Pre-Kindergarten, Full-day Kindergarten and Kindergarten. While Early Childhood 
Services programs are not mandatory in Alberta, increasing access across District schools to these Early Years 
program offerings enables more families to choose Edmonton Public Schools for their young children to help them 
get a great start to learning in preparation for entering Grade 1.  
 
LEARNING THROUGH PLAY 
The foundation for high quality early childhood programming in the Province of Alberta is purposeful play-based 
learning and developmentally appropriate practices. In classrooms across the District, Early Years programming in 
Pre-Kindergarten and Kindergarten looks different than formal school and embraces a play-based approach to 
learning as part of a high quality Early Years program to best meet the needs of young children and help them 
develop a wide range of abilities and competencies to succeed in school. Programming for Pre-Kindergarten and 
Kindergarten is supported through research and evidence informed curricular outcomes, guiding principles, core 
beliefs and philosophical approaches outlined in the following key documents: Alberta Education Kindergarten 
Program Statement, Edmonton Public Schools Early Years Guiding Document, Alberta Education 

Page 17 of 50 of the April 10, 2018 Consolidated Board Meeting Package

https://education.alberta.ca/media/563583/kindprogstate2008.pdf
https://education.alberta.ca/media/563583/kindprogstate2008.pdf
https://drive.google.com/file/d/14sjPK5n3FpYsz_WQOh4JazKPL3v8CXUJ/view
https://education.alberta.ca/media/1626521/ecs_specialedstds2006.pdf


 

 
4 

 

Standards for the Provision of Early Childhood Special Education and MacEwan University: Play, 
Participation and Possibilities Curriculum Framework.    
 
The District is committed to helping teachers, leaders, staff and parents build an understanding of 
developmentally appropriate inquiry and play-based practices in a language and literacy rich environment. 
Learning through play is supported by decades of research by early years experts which concludes that for young 
children, play and academic work are not distinct, and children learn best by doing. Research on early child 
development is clear: when children are playing, children are learning (CMEC, 2010). The scientific community 
acknowledges the benefits of play to strengthen neural pathways for improved development in thinking skills, 
problem solving, self-regulation and language expression. Research demonstrates that learning through play leads 
to greater social, emotional and academic success later on and that readiness for school means much more than a 
child’s academic competence or knowing letters and numbers. Many children start school but are not ready to 
learn because they lack the critical ability to regulate social, emotional and cognitive behaviours, known as 
executive function. Executive function is developed through opportunities to engage in meaningful play 
experiences and problem solving and is the foundation upon which later academic concepts can be successfully 
learned. It is important that staff working with young children understand the impact of play-based learning and 
what they need to do to foster meaningful and engaged play with children.  
 
Early childhood educators embrace philosophical and theoretical approaches to learning through play such as the 
Reggio Emilia approach, the Project Approach, socio-cultural theories or theories of knowing and learning that 
follow a developmental progression. Educators working with young children should see children as capable, 
strong and filled with potential. Fundamental to the success of an early learning classroom is a rich and inviting 
physical learning environment combined with strong and loving relationships between the children and the 
teacher and robust learning opportunities. Educators who ask questions, foster wonder, creativity and curiosity 
and use literature to deepen experiences, are building strong language and thinking skills through inquiry. Below 
is a competency graphic from the Early Years Guiding document to guide the design of high quality Early Years 
programs.  
 
Understanding the Early Years Competency Graphic to Help Guide Your Program Design 

 
 

Page 18 of 50 of the April 10, 2018 Consolidated Board Meeting Package

https://education.alberta.ca/media/1626521/ecs_specialedstds2006.pdf
https://education.alberta.ca/media/482257/play-participation-and-possibilities-reduced.pdf
https://education.alberta.ca/media/482257/play-participation-and-possibilities-reduced.pdf


 

 
5 

 

High quality early childhood programming is synonymous with inquiry play-based learning in a language rich 
environment and is the approach to learning the District subscribes to for Early Years programs. In the next 
section, each of the three Early Years programs will be highlighted, beginning with Pre-Kindergarten.   
 
EARLY YEARS PROGRAMS 
Edmonton Public Schools offers families three Early Years programs: Pre-Kindergarten, Full-day Kindergarten and 
Kindergarten. These programs help support more children to reach emotional, social, intellectual and physical 
developmental milestones before they enter Grade 1. As the population of our city increases and evolves, so does 
the population of young families and the number of children who would benefit from the opportunity to attend 
an early years program. To better understand the impact of the city’s changing population in relationship to the 
District’s early years programming, it is important to review demographic information within the city of 
Edmonton.  
 
The City of Edmonton census data shows that the population of children ages 0-4 has remained fairly consistent 
from 2014 to 2016 with over 40,000 children under five years of age. Though the number of children in Edmonton 
under the age of five has remained relatively static, young children in Edmonton represent an increasingly diverse 
population. Approximately 27 per cent of children in Edmonton are learning English as a new language. Many 
newcomer families have experienced trauma, have had limited or inconsistent access to schools and may live 
under the limitations of poverty. First Nations, Métis, and Inuit peoples are also a growing population and 
represent five per cent of the overall population in Edmonton or approximately 46,600 people and many with 
young families. In addition, there are an increasing number of children with complex developmental needs 
ranging from autism to speech and language delays who benefit from access to early intervention services 
through health and education.   
 
Another source of data to help describe the city’s population through the perspective of children aged 0-4 comes 
from the Early Development Instrument (EDI). The EDI is a short questionnaire completed by Kindergarten 
teachers across the province. The EDI questionnaire measures children’s ability to meet age appropriate 
developmental expectations across five areas: 
 

• physical Health and Well-Being 
• social Competence 
• emotional Maturity 
• language and cognitive development   
• communication skills and general knowledge 

 
Data from the EDI is used as an overall population measure and is collected every three to five years by the 
Alberta Government to provide a provincial and municipal census of child development. This data allows 
communities to understand trends in child development that can help shape decision-making, planning, programs 
and policy for the developmental health of children ages 0-5. EDI data was last gathered in February 2016 and 
results have recently been shared with schools, school districts and community partners. Information from the 
EDI is used, along with other data, to assist our District with decisions for expansion and distribution of Early Years 
programs. 
 
The following chart provides an overview of how children in Edmonton scored on the most recent EDI compared 
to the provincial average. Overall, the District serves a higher percentage of vulnerable children than the 
provincial average. Vulnerable describes children who score below the 10th percentile cut-off for the normative 
population. High vulnerability within a population indicates a greater percentage of children not meeting 
developmental norms when they come to Kindergarten. Research confirms that overall, these children benefit 
significantly throughout their lives when they participate in quality early years programming. 
 

Page 19 of 50 of the April 10, 2018 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

 
6 

 

Early Development Instrument (EDI): EPSB and Provincial Data Comparison 

 
 
In efforts to be responsive to the demographic make-up of 0-4 year olds in Edmonton, the District has engaged in 
an evolution of how to deliver early childhood services programming prior to Kindergarten to enable access for 
more eligible children. The Pre-Kindergarten Program model continues to include children with severe 
developmental delays while increasing access for more children who are First Nations, Métis, or Inuit, children 
who are English Language Learners and children with mild or moderate developmental delays. The former Early 
Education programs and Early Learning classes have been blended into what is now known as Pre-Kindergarten. 
For 2017-2018, District Pre-Kindergarten programs have been expanded to 31 schools across the city to address 
the demand for programming support for funded children as outlined by Alberta Education coding and funding 
criteria. Eligibility for Alberta Education Pre-Kindergarten funding includes the following: 
 

• Program Unit Funding (PUF) for children with severe disabilities or delays 
• Mild-Moderate Funding (MM) for children with mild or moderate disabilities or delays 
• English as a Second Language (ESL) for children who are English Language Learners (ELL) 
• First Nations, Métis, and Inuit (FNMI) funding for children whose families self-identify and who would 

benefit from a language enhanced program 
 
PRE-KINDERGARTEN, KINDERGARTEN and FULL-DAY KINDERGARTEN 
 
Pre-Kindergarten 
Approximately 1,536 children currently attend a District Pre-Kindergarten program.   
 
Pre-Kindergarten is an early intervention program for children aged 2 years and 8 months to 5 years of age and is 
designed to build children's strengths and skills in a playful, language-rich environment. Children attend half-day 
classes four days per week, from Tuesday to Friday. Class sizes range from 8-16 children and the children are 
taught by a certificated District teacher. Programming follows Alberta Education expectations as outlined in the 
Early Years Guiding document, the Standards for the Provision of Early Childhood Special Education, the Play, 
Possibilities and Participation curriculum framework and the Kindergarten Program statement.   

Page 20 of 50 of the April 10, 2018 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

 
7 

 

 
Access to multidisciplinary supports including speech and language, physical or occupational therapy and school 
family liaison services help children work on skills such as communication, mobility and sensory exploration. To be 
eligible for Pre-Kindergarten, children must have a first language other than English; have mild, moderate or 
severe developmental delays; or self-identify as First Nations, Métis, or Inuit. This is the first year of District-wide  
Pre-Kindergarten programs. The model for this program was created through an extensive two-year pilot project 
which began in 2014.  
 
From Pilot to Program 
To address the outcome of more children entering Grade 1 reaching developmental milestones, a pilot was 
conducted from 2014-2016 in four Millwoods schools to trial an expanded approach to Pre-Kindergarten 
programming. The purpose of the pilot was to develop a replicable model for a coordinated approach to 
programming, funding and access to serve children eligible for early intervention in communities closer to their 
home. The Early Years pilot successfully developed a program model that proved to be flexible, responsive and 
adaptable and could be replicated in other locations across the District. Following the conclusion of the pilot, the 
program model was approved by the Superintendent in 2016. This also included the adoption of a new program 
name, “Pre-Kindergarten” and the approval of a three-year plan supporting expansion and distribution of  
Pre-Kindergarten programming across the District.   
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 21 of 50 of the April 10, 2018 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

 
8 

 

Expansion and distribution of Pre-Kindergarten programs under the new model began in the south and west areas 
of the city in 2016-2017 and in the north for 2017-2018. In developing the expansion plan, new and existing 
locations for Pre-Kindergarten programs were based on the following criteria: 
 

• population demographics and enrolment pressures 
• consideration to maintain existing Early Education Special Education Designated program sites and 

schools with Early Learning classes where possible 
• facility conditions and space utilization 
• impact and lessons learned from the opening of 2016-2017 locations 

 
The chart below shows the enrolment growth of Pre-Kindergarten programs as a result of the pilot and the 
ensuing expansion efforts, as well as the increase in access for children who qualify for Pre-Kindergarten 
programming under Alberta Education eligibility requirements for PUF, MM, ELL and FNMI funding.  
 
Pre-Kindergarten Coding Chart 
 

Code/ Year 2014-15 
 

2015-16 
 

2016-17 2017-18 

Pre-Kindergarten 
Program Enrolment:  
Total Number of 
Children  

1052 1162 1292 1530 

Number of Children 
Eligible for PUF 

833 925 1020 1129 

Number of Children 
Eligible for MM 

34 50 78 121 

Number of Children 
Identified as ELL 

86 126 177 293 

Number of Children 
Identified as FNMI 

97 86 111 128 

Note: Children coded ELL or FNMI may be counted twice if they also have a MM or PUF code. The data does not 
reflect children who have dual codes.   
 

 

Page 22 of 50 of the April 10, 2018 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

 
9 

 

Pre-Kindergarten Locations and Program Cluster Model 
The following map shows the location of the 31 District schools offering Pre-Kindergarten programming. The map 
is colour coded to show the ten Pre-Kindergarten clusters and distinguishes the Hub and Satellite schools within 
each cluster. Following the map is an overview of how the Cluster model operationalizes.  

 

Page 23 of 50 of the April 10, 2018 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

 
10 

 

The District’s Pre-Kindergarten program model is based on school clusters. Each cluster includes a larger Pre-
Kindergarten Hub program partnering with smaller Satellite programs at neighbouring schools within the cluster. 
The Hub sites typically have eight classrooms with an a.m. and p.m. cohort in each class. Satellite sites typically 
have one classroom with an a.m. and p.m. cohort in the class.  

 
Hub Schools Satellite Schools 
Beacon Heights Homesteader and Sifton 
Elmwood Callingwood and Brookside 
Evansdale Delton and Norwood 
Hazeldean Lansdowne and Steinhauer 
Hillview Bisset, Ekota, Sakaw and Tipaskan 
John Barnett Balwin, Princeton and York 
Mayfield Grovenor, John A. McDougall and Youngstown 
Scott Robertson Lauderdale and McArthur 
Tevie Miller  
Waverly Duggen 

 
The Hub programs function in accordance with Alberta Education designated Special Education ECS program 
requirements, have a minimum of 70 per cent of their children accessing PUF and operate class sizes ranging from 
8 to 12 children. A typical Hub class would have eight children accessing PUF and two children who are coded as 
MM, ELL or FNMI. Hub programs retain and administer the PUF budget for all schools in their cluster and provide 
the exempt and support staff for children eligible for PUF and MM funding at both the Hub and Satellite sites. 
 
Satellite sites have a maximum of 50 per cent of the children accessing PUF and operate class sizes around 16 
children. Typically a Satellite classroom would include children who are eligible for ELL, FNMI and MM funding and 
six children accessing PUF. Satellite site schools provide the teacher for their Pre-Kindergarten classroom and 
work in collaboration with the Hub program around accessing their support and exempt staff, such as Educational 
Assistants, Speech Language Assistants, a Speech Language Pathologist, Occupational Therapist and Physical 
Therapist.    
 
At the heart of the evolution from pilot to District Pre-Kindergarten program is the extensive teamwork across 
Hubs and Satellites, among central staff and school staff and with key community partners such as Alberta Health 
Services and the Multicultural Health Brokers. Throughout the pilot and over multiple school years there have 
been countless meetings, training sessions and professional learning opportunities that have informed and 
contributed to the evolution of the model, sustainable systems change and ultimately the success of the 
expansion. This work truly reflects the District’s Cornerstone Values of equity, integrity, accountability and most 
notably, collaboration. 
 

 

Page 24 of 50 of the April 10, 2018 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

 
11 

 

Access to and Awareness of Pre-Kindergarten Programs for Families 
Access to Kindergarten is determined by a child’s age and this criterion is commonly known amongst families. 
However, access to Pre-Kindergarten programming is not as universally understood by families or the broader 
community. To access a Pre-Kindergarten program, children must meet requirements for funding as outlined by 
Alberta Education and there are two ways to determine this: provide a current assessment by a healthcare 
professional or attend a District screening session.   
 

• Access through HealthCare 
For some families, their child has been previously assessed or diagnosed by a healthcare professional for a 
developmental delay. The healthcare professional assists the family to submit assessment reports to  
Pre-Kindergarten sites for confirmation of eligibility and placement. Information sessions are provided in 
the spring at Hub locations for families with current assessment reports so they can meet with staff and 
find out more about the Pre-Kindergarten program. Children with assessments from healthcare 
professionals are typically those with severe disabilities or delays and are eligible for PUF. 

 
• Access through Screening 

Many other families are interested in a Pre-Kindergarten program and can attend a screening session to 
find out if their child meets criteria for the program. Screening sessions begin in March for the following 
school year. Each Pre-Kindergarten site hosts screening sessions which take approximately one hour and 
are conducted by Speech Language Pathologists and Occupational Therapists in collaboration with school 
staff and community partners to determine eligibility. Most screening sessions accommodate 23 children 
in a day. Supports for families requiring assistance to participate in the screening session are available as 
required (such as translators). Pre-Kindergarten sites can choose to add additional screening sessions if 
they have more spaces available for eligible children.   

 
Family awareness about the opportunity for Pre-Kindergarten is important. The screening sessions and the 
District’s working relationship with Alberta Health Services help to promote awareness. However, to support 
overall awareness, the District has developed a comprehensive communication plan to advertise Pre-Kindergarten 
screening and information sessions. This plan includes: 
 

• District website information 
• School Zone posting 
• flyers and posters for schools, preschool agency events and other locations frequented by families 
• messaging for outdoor school signs 
• messaging for healthcare professionals and agencies working with young children 
• social media posts on District channels 
• paid advertising on Facebook 
• radio advertisements targeting multicultural radio shows 
• emails to community partners 
• Superintendent’s message in the Edmonton Examiner 

  
The Pre-Kindergarten advertising campaign typically begins early January in preparation for March Screening and 
Information sessions. Data is being gathered to track the effectiveness of each of the advertising methods and 
inform future advertising campaigns.   
 
The District also takes deliberate efforts to connect with families who may not typically be aware of programming 
supports for their younger children. These efforts include working closely with the Multicultural Health Brokers to 
reach out to families new to Canada and the District’s Family Liaison Project focused on early engagement with 
Indigenous families.   

Page 25 of 50 of the April 10, 2018 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

 
12 

 

Pre-Kindergarten Screenings 
Universal screening tools and a process for screening were first developed during the pilot and are revised each 
year by therapists, school and central staff. Training for therapists, screening coordinators, school administrators 
and office staff is provided in January in preparation for the actual screening sessions, supporting parent inquiries 
and entering screening data to inform program placements. The first screening sessions took place in 2014-2015 
and were hosted at Hillview, Tipaskan, Sakaw and Ekota schools. Since then, additional screening events have 
been added each year with the phased expansion and distribution of Pre-Kindergarten programs. Consistently, 
approximately 95 per cent of children who attend a screening session are eligible for a Pre-Kindergarten program. 
Families of children that are not eligible are provided with a variety of community resources such as Edmonton 
Public Library programs, community preschools or Parent Link Centres, and all families were welcomed to return 
to a District school for Kindergarten.  
 
When looking at the data around the number of families that participated in a screening event in the spring and 
the Pre-Kindergarten program enrolment for the following school year, there appears to be a correlation between 
spring screening and the increase in Pre-Kindergarten enrolment. Since the start of the screening sessions in 
spring of 2015, the number of children accessing Pre-Kindergarten programming has grown by 47 per cent. The 
following chart provides an overview of the evolution and growth of District supported Pre-Kindergarten 
screening events as well as Pre-Kindergarten enrolment data from 2014-2015 to the present operational year. 
 
 
School Year 

 
Program 
Enrolment 

 
Screening Data 

 
2014 - 2015 

 

 
1052 

March 2015 (for 2015-16 school year) 
• 4 Screening sessions at Hillview, Ekota, Tipaskan, Sakaw 
• Approximately 195 children attended 

 
2015 - 2016 

 
1162 

March 2016 (for 2016-17 school year) 
• 18 Screening sessions at Hillview, Bisset, Ekota, Tipaskan, Sakaw, 

Hazeldean, Lansdowne, Steinhauer, Mayfield, John A McDougall, Grovenor, 
Youngstown, Elmwood, Callingwood  

• Approximately 325 children attended 

 
2016 - 2017 

 

 
1292 

March 2017 (for 2017-18 school year) 
• 34 Screening sessions at Hillview, Bisset, Ekota, Tipaskan, Sakaw, 

Hazeldean, Lansdowne, Steinhauer, Mayfield, Grovenor, Youngstown, John 
A McDougall, Elmwood, Callingwood, Brookside, Waverley, Scott 
Robertson, McArthur, Lauderdale, John Barnett, Homesteader, Norwood, 
Delton, Sifton, Beacon Heights, Princeton, York, Evansdale, Balwin 

• Approximately 635 children attended 

 
2017 - 2018 

 

 
1530 

March 2018 (for 2018-19 school year) 
• 34 Screening sessions at Hillview, Bisset, Ekota, Tipaskan, Sakaw, 

Hazeldean, Lansdowne, Steinhauer, Mayfield, Grovenor, Youngstown, John 
A McDougall, Elmwood, Callingwood, Brookside, Waverley, Scott 
Robertson, McArthur, Lauderdale, John Barnett, Homesteader, Norwood, 
Delton, Sifton, Beacon Heights, Princeton, Duggan, York, Evansdale, Balwin 

• Screening recently concluded. Current data TBD. 

NOTE: Tevie Miller Pre-Kindergarten program is not included in the screening data as they serve children with a 
primary diagnosis of severe language and/or speech delays 
 

Page 26 of 50 of the April 10, 2018 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

 
13 

 

Centralized Supports for Pre-Kindergarten Model: Placement and Transportation 
• District Support Services (DSS) 

Once screening has been completed, a centralized placement process is in place which utilizes the Special 
Needs Assisted Placement (SNAP) tool and aligns with District SNAP timelines. The centralized placement 
process is coordinated through DSS and Student Transportation. The benefits of a systematic placement 
of children include: 

 
o more children attending Pre-Kindergarten at their designated school 
o reduced yellow bus ride time for children accessing PUF 
o more families from communities whose children attend Pre-Kindergarten together 
o balanced class profiles with a pre-determined ratio of PUF and MM, FNMI and ELL 
o accurate count of children returning to Pre-Kindergarten for a second year 

 
There are three waves of placement lists from April to June. DSS provides each group of Pre-Kindergarten 
cluster schools with a list of children to review. Administrators from each school cluster collaborate to 
determine site and classroom configurations and schools begin calling families to register for the 
upcoming school year. This process helps each Pre-Kindergarten cluster build balanced class profiles. DSS 
continues to support placement of children with assessment reports over the summer. This work fills the 
majority of any remaining spaces and most Pre-Kindergarten programs are at capacity by September 30th.  

 
• Student Transportation 

Transportation for Pre-Kindergarten is provided for those children who are eligible for Program Unit 
Funding (PUF). Funding for this service is accessed through a grant from Alberta Education that supports 
student transportation. While ridership for children accessing PUF has increased there are transportation 
efficiencies that have been realized through the new model. For example, in 2015 there were 
approximately 74 per cent of children being transported to a site in their home zone. Currently, there are 
86 per cent of children being transported to a site in their home zone. There are far fewer children being 
transported out of zone for programming, as demonstrated by the following data: 

 

Year Pre-Kindergarten 
Programs 

Pre-Kindergarten Children riding 
the Yellow Bus (PUF only) 

2014-15 10 Early Education sites 761 

2015-16 13 Pre-Kindergarten sites 796 

2016-17 21 Pre-Kindergarten sites 923 

2017-18 31 Pre-Kindergarten sites 1014 

 
In addition, Transportation Service Areas for Pre-Kindergarten have been developed to enable more 
efficient routes and lower ride times. Working collaboratively with Pre-Kindergarten sites on aligning 
School Hours of Operation to maximize pick up and drop off times has also been an asset. In 2017-2018, 
the average one-way ride time for a child in Pre-Kindergarten was approximately 32 minutes. The average 
ride time for Satellite sites is 25 minutes. Having a community based approach to transportation means 
eligible children in a community can ride together. Because Hub sites have more classroom capacity and 
serve more children, and because 70 per cent of the children in Hub sites access PUF, they draw more 
children from the broader transportation zone. Satellite sites serve fewer children accessing PUF and the 
majority of children are from the immediate school community. 
 

Page 27 of 50 of the April 10, 2018 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

 
14 

 

In short, DSS and Student Transportation work side by side around the placement process and transportation 
logistics; this centralized approach helps to make effective decisions regarding Pre-Kindergarten placements and 
promotes system efficiencies. However, schools are still in the best position to make the final decision for site and 
classroom placements and DSS and Student Transportation work in close collaboration with school leaders and 
families. 
 
How Do We Know our Pre-Kindergarten Model is Effective? 
While a large body of research exists that confirms the positive impact of early childhood programs on later 
success in school and life-long learning, we are just beginning to gather our own data to track the effectiveness of  
the District’s approach to Pre-Kindergarten programming on developmental outcomes. To date, there is 
preliminary data related to growth demonstrated by children with severe language delay. In 2016-2017, data 
showed that 79 children who were identified as having a severe language delay in Pre-Kindergarten made 
significant gains and only had a mild-moderate language delay when they entered Kindergarten in the fall. We 
also know that approximately 70 additional children with a severe language delay who came from a Pre-
Kindergarten program outside our District were identified as having a moderate or mild delay when they entered 
a District Kindergarten program. This is approximately 149 children who have made significant progress in their 
language development through local early intervention programs. This trend shows overall growth and confirms 
that early intervention for children with speech and language delays makes a measurable difference.  
 
A more comprehensive longitudinal study to examine the impact of Pre-Kindergarten on later success in 
Kindergarten and beyond is planned for September 2018.  
 
In summary, the District’s delivery of Pre-Kindergarten programming will continue to be informed by research, the 
findings from the initial pilot and through lessons learned through these first years of expansion. The District aims 
to provide programming closest to where the children live, to be strategic in locating programs in communities 
serving high numbers of ELL, Indigenous and socially complex families and to remain responsive to the needs of 
our youngest learners and their families. From Pre-Kindergarten children transition up to Kindergarten 
programming as their next step on their learning journey. 
 
Kindergarten 
Alberta Education provides universal funding for all children who are 4 years and 6 months old to start 
Kindergarten but it is parental choice to send their child to Kindergarten, as Kindergarten is not a provincially 
mandated program. Though the city’s population of 0-4 year olds has remained stable, Edmonton Public Schools 
has experienced a steady increase in the number of children participating in Kindergarten programs from 2014 
onwards. Currently, there are approximately 7,676 children attending a District Kindergarten program. This is an 
increase of 8.8 per cent or approximately 677 children since 2014. While some children transition into 
Kindergarten from a Pre-Kindergarten or other ECS program, there are many other children for whom 
Kindergarten is their first school experience. 
 
Edmonton Public Schools offers Kindergarten at all of its 167 elementary schools. Of these 167 programs, 141 are 
traditional half day programs and 26 are Full-day Kindergarten programs, strategically placed in schools where the 
student population faces higher social complexity or vulnerability and would benefit from the enrichment of a full-
day program.   
 
All District Kindergarten programming is fully inclusive, play-based and provides children the opportunity to 
socialize, get to know the children in their community and become familiar with the school environment. 
Programming is based upon Alberta Education’s Kindergarten program statement which is focused around seven 
curricular areas: early literacy, early numeracy, citizenship and identity, environment and community awareness, 
personal and social responsibility, physical skills and well-being and creative expression. Each of these areas 
provides the foundation for later success in Grade 1 and beyond and are not taught in isolation but in an 
integrated, holistic manner. It is the role of the Kindergarten teacher to provide universal learning experiences in a 

Page 28 of 50 of the April 10, 2018 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

 
15 

 

play-based environment to expose children to these seven curricular areas and include targeted and specialized 
supports for children who may benefit from additional learning strategies.  

 
Children can also benefit from starting Kindergarten at District schools that offer languages or alternate programs 
and different teaching philosophies. Regardless of the school or program chosen, every child is welcome in 
Kindergarten and learning is focused on individual strengths and areas for growth. 

 
Full-day Kindergarten 
Research (da Costa, 2008) shows that Full-day Kindergarten has a positive and long lasting impact for children 
who come from low socio-economic or educationally disadvantaged backgrounds and who would most benefit 
from extra time in class engaged in learning activities that prepare them socially and academically for Grade 1 and 
beyond.  
 
Alberta Education provides funding for 475 hours of instruction for Kindergarten, which typically equates to a half-
day program five days a week. Through District efforts a Full-day Kindergarten program is supported in 26 District 
schools. This reflects the combined commitment of the Board of Trustees and the focused work of Edmonton 
Public Schools’ Foundation. The Foundation currently raises support for six Full-day Kindergarten programs. The 
remaining programs are funded through the District’s annual allocation; this commitment of targeted funding for 
Full-day Kindergarten is a reflection of the Board of Trustees’ support for early intervention and an 
acknowledgement of the importance of learning for our most vulnerable children.    

 
Programming for Full-day Kindergarten is the same as it is for Kindergarten but provides extra time for children to 
build important skills and support the development of the literacy, numeracy and social-emotional domains that 
are the foundation to their school learning journey and life beyond school. For the 2017-2018 year, there are 875 
children enrolled in a Full-day Kindergarten program. 
 
 

 
 

Page 29 of 50 of the April 10, 2018 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

 
16 

 

The following map provides an overview of accessibility to enriched early years programming with the placement 
of Pre-Kindergarten and Full-day Kindergarten sites across District schools. The map is colour coded to distinguish 
what early years programming is specific to each school site. 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 30 of 50 of the April 10, 2018 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

 
17 

 

EARLY YEARS EVALUATION-TEACHER ASSESSMENT (EYE-TA) 
An important role of the Kindergarten teacher is to help identify children who need specialized supports and 
services. The Early Years Evaluation-Teacher Assessment (EYE-TA) is a screening tool used by all District 
Kindergarten teachers to monitor and assess every child’s developmental readiness at the beginning of the school 
year and again in the spring. Each fall, using the EYE-TA, all Kindergarten teachers gather information through 
observations and play-based activities to assess each child’s individual developmental readiness at the start of the 
Kindergarten year. The five developmental domains evaluated are: 
 

1. Awareness of Self and Environment: a child’s understanding of the world and his/her ability to make 
connections with home and community experiences. 

2. Social Skills and Approaches to Learning: a child’s attentiveness during classroom activities and his/her 
ability to interact with peers while respecting classroom rules. 

3. Cognitive Skills: a child’s basic mathematics and pre-reading skills and his/her ability to solve problems. 
4. Language and Communication: a child’s understanding of spoken language and his/her ability to express 

thoughts and feelings. 
5. Physical Development: 

a. Fine Motor: a child’s ability to perform small movements that require hand-eye coordination. 
b. Gross Motor: a child’s ability to perform large movements that involve arms, legs and body. 

 
Fall results are used to inform teacher practice using the Pyramid of Intervention to review which children are 
showing appropriate development, which children are experiencing some difficulty and which children are 
experiencing significant difficulty. Teachers can view results for individual children and class profiles; individual 
child reports are shared with parents in the fall, along with documentation of the child’s strengths and areas for 
growth. The results of the fall EYE-TA assessment serve as the formal progress report for children in Kindergarten.  
 
Using the results from the EYE-TA as one source of data, teachers are able to strategically program for the 
developmental and learning needs of children in their class. The EYE-TA is administered again in the spring. This 
second use of the tool measures for growth and provides most up-to-date data around each child’s readiness for 
Grade 1.   
 
Over the past three years, through the collaborative efforts of classroom teachers, the Inclusive Learning team 
and parents, more than 80 per cent of children leaving District Kindergarten programs were meeting EYE-TA 
developmental milestones indicating readiness for Grade 1. Staff strive to build upon this success and work 
towards seeing even more children reach this important developmental milestone. To achieve this goal, the 
ongoing collaboration with the Inclusive Learning School-Linked team, families and teachers to discuss EYE-TA 
results and assist the teacher in providing the right programming strategies and supports for each child’s learning 
will be an important partnership.  

The following chart shows the results of the EYE-TA over the past five years for all District Kindergarten 
children. Pre and post EYE-TA results have only been available since 2015. This pre and post comparison 
demonstrates the growth that occurs throughout the Kindergarten year. 

  
Early Years Evaluation - Teacher Assessment and 

District Indicators 
  

Results (in percentages) 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

Early Years Evaluation – Teacher Assessment 
Percentage of children entering (pre) and leaving (post)* District 
Kindergarten programs that meet developmental milestones. 

61 63 62 (fall) 
81 (spring 

(19 per cent 

61 (fall) 
81 (spring) 

(20 per cent 

62 (fall) 
82 (spring) 

(20 per cent 

Page 31 of 50 of the April 10, 2018 Consolidated Board Meeting Package

https://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/results/strategicplan/priority1/goal1/readyforkindergarten/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/results/strategicplan/priority1/goal1/readyforkindergarten/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/results/strategicplan/priority1/goal1/readyforkindergarten/


 

 
18 

 

improvement) improvement) improvement) 

●         Awareness of Self and Environment. 78 82 80 (fall) 
92 (spring) 

(12 per cent 
improvement) 

80 (fall) 
92 (spring) 

(12 per cent 
improvement) 

80 (fall) 
92 (spring) 

(12 per cent 
improvement) 

●        Social Skills and Approaches to Learning. 75 76 75 (fall) 
89 (spring) 

(14 per cent 
improvement) 

77 (fall) 
89 (spring) 

(12 per cent 
improvement) 

77 (fall) 
89 (spring) 

(12 per cent 
improvement) 

●        Cognitive Skills. 62 64 64 (fall) 
90 (spring) 

(34 per cent 
improvement) 

62 (fall) 
89 (spring) 

(27 per cent 
improvement) 

62 (fall) 
89 (spring) 

(27 per cent 
improvement) 

●        Language and Communication. 73 77 75 (fall) 
88 (spring) 

(13 per cent 
improvement) 

75 (fall) 
88 (spring) 

(13 per cent 
improvement) 

76 (fall) 
89 (spring) 

(13 per cent 
improvement) 

●        Physical Development. 
○        Fine Motor. 

69 70 70 (fall) 
93 (spring) 

(23 per cent 
improvement) 

70 (fall) 
92 (spring) 

(22 per cent 
improvement) 

69 (fall) 
92 (spring) 

(23 per cent 
improvement) 

○        Gross Motor. 78 79 77 (fall) 
93 (spring) 

(16 per cent 
improvement) 

76 (fall) 
92 (spring) 

(16 per cent 
improvement) 

79 (fall) 
93 (spring) 

(14 per cent 
improvement) 

Notes: 
●      EYE-TA post assessments began in the 2014-2015 school year. 
●      Improvement for EYE-TA is based on spring-results compared to fall-results. 
 
 

Page 32 of 50 of the April 10, 2018 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

 
19 

 

INCLUSIVE LEARNING SCHOOL-LINKED TEAMS  
A significant role of Inclusive Learnings’ work in Kindergarten is the identification of children who require 
additional supports and services and providing classroom consultation support for teachers. Typically, Speech 
Language Pathologists (SLPs) and Occupational Therapists (OTs) follow up with children who are experiencing 
difficulty and may complete a formal assessment for PUF or MM funding. Other Inclusive Learning team members 
who may be involved in the Kindergarten classroom include: Early Years teacher consultants, School Family 
Liaisons, Psychologists, Physical Therapists, Adapted Physical Education Consultants, Speech Language Assistants, 
Occupational Therapy Assistants and Educational Assistants.   
 
Educational Assistants (EAs) are an important part of the Kindergarten classroom, particularly in supporting 
children accessing PUF. EAs are placed in classrooms where children with complex needs require targeted or 
specialized supports for behavior challenges, safety risks, self-care, mobility and communication or language 
development. Inclusive Learning employs over 130 educational assistants to support children in Kindergarten. 
Professional development for Inclusive Learning Educational Assistants is ongoing throughout the year and 
includes certification in Non-Violent Crisis Intervention and sessions such as trauma informed care, autism, 
anxiety and self-regulation, the 12 types of play, language and literacy intervention, Hanen “Learning Language 
and Loving it” program, cultural sensitivity training and strategies to support English language learners and 
Indigenous children. 
 
Below is a table that shows the steady increase in complexity of children across District Kindergarten classrooms 
while illustrating that fewer children with language delays are accessing PUF, possibly due to increased access to 
early intervention programs such as Pre-Kindergarten. Notable is the increase in children with autism and children 
with emotional-behavioural delays which adds to complexity in the classroom. This early identification of children 
with complex needs is critical for early intervention and to ensure appropriate supports and programming are in 
place to promote success, confidence and well-being as a learner. 
 
Profile of Kindergarten Children 

 
* These numbers do not include Kindergarten aged children at the following schools: Beacon Heights, Elmwood, 
Evansdale, Hillview, Hazeldean, John Barnett, Mayfield, Scott Robertson, Tevie Miller and Waverley. These 
Kindergarten classrooms are served by the Hub school Pre-Kindergarten teams.  
 
 
 
 

Page 33 of 50 of the April 10, 2018 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

 
20 

 

EARLY YEARS INITIATIVES 
Reflecting the District’s commitment to quality early years programming, the following initiatives are examples of 
work happening across District schools that support and explore how we can continue to strengthen our work in 
this area and help more children reach developmental milestones.    
 
Supporting Children who are not yet Meeting EYE-TA Developmental Milestones 
As stated previously, more than 80 per cent of children leaving District Kindergarten programs are meeting EYE-TA 
developmental milestones indicating readiness for Grade 1. However this also means that approximately 19 per 
cent of children who continue on to Grade 1 are still exhibiting difficulty or great difficulty in one or more areas as 
indicated by the spring EYE-TA results. The District is taking a deliberate look at the areas of Language and 
Communication, Cognitive Skills, and Social Skills and Approaches to Learning, as these three areas have the 
highest number of children not yet meeting appropriate development. In response to this data, two initiatives 
were launched in 2015-2016: the Language and Literacy Project and the Math Interactive Learning Experience 
(MILE) Research Study. 

 
• Language and Literacy Project 

The Language and Literacy project is a District developed approach to literacy instruction and 
intervention. It has been informed by expertise from the following: Speech Language Pathologist (SLP), a 
reading specialist and ESL consultants. This team of specialists reviewed research and evidence-based 
strategies to support the development of children’s oral language skills which impact long-term literacy 
growth. The research supports five areas of literacy instruction focus: 

 
o phonological awareness 
o oral language 
o print awareness 
o vocabulary development 
o reciprocal teaching (Reciprocal teaching is designed to enhance comprehension in the classroom 

by enabling students to take on a more active role in discussing their texts, usually in small group 
reading session) 

 
This is not a prescribed program; rather, it is a way to bring effective evidence-based strategies into the 
classroom to enhance what teachers are already doing to build literacy skills in their students. The 
initiative began in Grade 1 classrooms and has evolved to include Kindergarten and Grades 2 and 3. 

 
Initially schools were invited to participate based on the results of the EYE-TA to identify children 
transitioning to Grade 1 and at risk for later challenges with literacy success. Each year, additional schools, 
grade levels and teachers have been added to the project. Currently 76 teachers from 21 schools are 
participating in the project. Teachers receive three full-day professional learning days throughout the year 
to build knowledge, share ideas, gain new resources and practice new strategies. Teachers are also 
provided with release time to engage in visitations to other classrooms, to meet in a collaborative 
community of practice within catchments and to access consultants to support questions and 
programming. To broaden the reach or impact of lessons learned from this approach to early literacy 
instruction, four videos and accompanying tip sheets have been developed to be used and shared by 
teachers across the District.   
 
Preliminary results from the project indicate that vocabulary development is increased by 48 per cent and 
teachers increased the frequency of intentional oral language development and the use of reciprocal 
teaching by 25 per cent. Students made connections to content 33 per cent more frequently. Ongoing 
research will continue to measure the impact on student success and teacher confidence.  

 
 

Page 34 of 50 of the April 10, 2018 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

 
21 

 

• MILE Study 
Math Interactive Learning Experience (MILE) research study was implemented in partnership with the 
University of Alberta and focuses on strategies to improve math skill development for children with 
developmental difficulties who were in Kindergarten or Grade 1. During the 2016-2017 school year, six 
schools and 11 teachers and/or educational assistants (EAs) initially agreed to participate. Initially, a total 
of 28 students with severe behavioral challenges or diagnosed with a neurodevelopmental disorder, such 
as Fetal Alcohol Syndrome, were part of the study. Part way through this study, three of the participating 
schools stepped back from this initiative. Emerging learnings from this study indicate challenges around 
teacher time required to properly train for and implement the strategies with their students. Despite the 
challenges faced by teachers, the study demonstrated positive math skill development and retention for 
the students requiring specialized supports who fully participated in this work. Preliminary analysis 
indicated that: 
 

o Eighty six per cent (12/14) of students who completed the intervention improved by at least one 
standard deviation in at least one mathematical area. 

o Fifty seven per cent (8/14) improved in at least two areas. 
o Twenty eight per cent (4/14) improved in at least three areas.  
o Fourteen per cent (2/14) improved in four areas. 
o MILE students also retained learning after six months and fared better in mathematical 

understanding and had higher math scores than a control group. 
 

Next steps will be to identify strategies teachers can implement as universal and targeted (small group) 
supports for all children, begin a process of knowledge translation and capacity building in teachers from 
Kindergarten to Grade 3 and measure the broader impact upon student’s mathematical understanding 
and performance in regular classroom settings. 

 
Initiatives that Support Families 
The District’s Early Years Guiding Document recognizes that family is the child’s first and most important teacher, 
and the outcome for Priority 3 Goal 1 is to provide families with opportunities to be involved in their child’s 
education. Families play an important role in Early Years programs and the following initiatives help build strong 
and positive relationships and partnerships with schools and families at the very beginning of a child’s educational 
experience.  
 
The 2017 District Feedback survey results indicate that 89 per cent of Pre-Kindergarten and Kindergarten parents 
understand what their child must do to be successful in Kindergarten and Grade 1. However, it is important for 
Early Years staff to continue to share knowledge and best practices with parents so they can provide enriching 
experiences to support their child’s educational journey and life-long learning. Current research in the field of 
neuroscience and early childhood education provides important information to help parents understand 
developmental milestones and what they can do at home to support their child’s development and enhance 
expectations for success in school and later in life.  
 

• Welcome to the Early Years: Building Parent Capacity Project 
This research project is in response to the Career Pathways initiative to assist parents in selecting 
experiences that will help their child explore opportunities for successful lifelong learning, living and 
working. Using resources from the Alberta Family Wellness Initiative and the Welcome to Kindergarten 
program through the Learning Partnership, parents will learn about the core story of brain development 
and the importance of positive interactions, inquiry, play and language rich experiences to increase their 
child’s ability to learn and participate in school.   

 
Twenty Kindergarten teachers will participate in this project and host two or three information sessions 
for their Kindergarten families over the course of the following school year. To prepare for the project, 

Page 35 of 50 of the April 10, 2018 Consolidated Board Meeting Package

http://www.albertafamilywellness.org/
http://www.thelearningpartnership.ca/what-we-do/student-programs/welcome-to-kindergarten


 

 
22 

 

participating teachers attended a professional learning day in March to provide them with the resources 
and processes to support them hosting the parent information sessions. Parents and teachers will take 
part in a pre and post survey to measure how well this approach to family engagement is building parent 
capacity around the types of experiences they can provide at home and the usefulness of the resources.   

 
• First Nations, Métis, and Inuit Family Liaison  

To support schools in their efforts to build trusting and positive relationships with families of First Nations, 
Métis, and Inuit early learners, the District has initiated the Family Liaison project. This project is in its 
beginning stages and is focused around seven District schools with Pre-Kindergarten programs. At this 
time, one family liaison worker has been hired and work is underway to hire the second liaison worker.  
 
The Family Liaison worker has been available to support families during Pre-Kindergarten screening events 
and has offered culturally responsive Family Oriented Programming (FOPs) opportunities for families at 
several Pre-Kindergarten sites. FOP sessions included PowWow practice and storytelling/ribbon shirt & 
skirt making sessions with an Elder. This is a positive step forward in offering Pre-Kindergarten 
programming that feels welcoming and inclusive for families of Indigenous children.     

 
Initiatives that Support High Quality Early Years Programming  
As Pre-Kindergarten and Kindergarten programs continue to grow, supporting high quality early years 
programming is increasingly important. Ensuring we have the very best staff in our Early Years programs means 
continued work-force planning that includes current professional learning and access to relevant resources for 
teachers, administrators, support and exempt staff working with young children. The following initiatives address 
the need to provide ongoing support for Early Years programs and the staff supporting them. 
 

• Early Years Resources and Professional Learning 
In April 2017, the District’s Early Years Online Resources were completed. The resources have been 
developed around the four early childhood pathways: teacher and learner disposition, the learning 
environment, design for learning and assessment. Each pathway is aligned with the Teaching Quality 
Standards and the Alberta Education requirements for early childhood programming. Teachers and 
principals can use these resources to design and evaluate their Pre-Kindergarten or Kindergarten 
programs. The resources were developed to be used as part of ongoing professional learning and include 
tools, visuals and research to support each of the four early childhood pathways: 

 
• Inquiry and Play Community of Practice 

A monthly Inquiry and Play community of practice takes place after school from 4:00–5:30 p.m. and is 
voluntarily attended by Pre-Kindergarten and Kindergarten teachers. Attendance ranges from 45 to over 
90 teachers. Conversations are facilitated by teachers and based on topics of professional interest. Early 
Years teachers volunteer to host a session at their school, so the location varies each month. The Inclusive 
Learning Early Years teacher consultants share information about the community of practice through 
Bulletin Board, via email to their catchments and word of mouth. This grassroots community of practice 
has been a powerful mechanism for teachers to connect and share practices, research and ideas in an 
informal and meaningful way.     

 
• First Nations, Métis, and Inuit Resources and Professional Learning 

To support quality, culturally appropriate programming within Early Years classrooms the First Nations, 
Métis, and Inuit Education unit staff provided the following supports:  

o A full-day session for 120 Kindergarten educational assistants to build their knowledge, 
understanding and awareness around First Nations, Métis, and Inuit education, learnings included 
the blanket exercise, information about Truth and Reconciliation and Indigenous cultural activities 
that can be incorporated into the classroom setting. 

Page 36 of 50 of the April 10, 2018 Consolidated Board Meeting Package

https://sites.google.com/a/epsb.ca/earlyyears/home


 

 
23 

 

o Culturally responsive resources, such as the First Nations Early Learning Edukit, the First Nations, 
Métis, and Inuit recommended literature list and support for using Cree lullabies in the classroom 
have been made available to staff working with young children. 

 
• Forest and Nature School: Building Positive Mental Health 

In 2016-2017, a Forest and Nature school project began at Roberta MacAdams School in the two 
Kindergarten programs to address social-emotional development, positive mental health and physical 
literacy through outdoor play for young children. According to Sarah Blackwell (2015) long-term forest 
school programming promotes an increase in resiliency, confidence, a positive impact on children’s 
physical and mental health and improves social and cognitive competence in children. Research shows 
that outdoor play environments are rich in sensory stimulation, contribute to literacy development, foster 
an appreciation of the natural world and support the development of naturalistic intelligence and 
biophilia (a natural affinity for living things)(Wilson, 2008.). Ruth Wilson (2008) also suggests that outdoor 
play environments support the whole child and the development of communication, mental, physical, 
social and emotional health through repeated exposure to natural outdoor environments.   
 
A key element for this project was the hiring and training of a Nature school practitioner, along with two 
Kindergarten teachers to provide daily outdoor experiences in the natural environment of Blackmud Creek 
ravine near the school. Training for the Nature school practitioner included an Environmental Education 
course through Cornell University, an outdoor play training course through the University of British 
Columbia, and the Forest and Nature school practitioners’ level 1 - 3 courses.  
 
While further data collection is needed, there is positive impact on Kindergarten children’s abilities in the 
physical domain such as improved core strength, balance, increased physical confidence and competence 
and body awareness. Perhaps the greatest growth can be seen in the social-emotional domain such as 
improved problem solving abilities, sensory awareness and emotional intelligence such as self-regulation, 
self-awareness, social skills, empathy, motivation and improved behaviour.  
 
Several professional learning opportunities to share this initiative with other catchment teachers and 
educational assistants have occurred as have parent inservices to provide information about Forest and 
Nature School to a wider audience. Further work to study the impact of engagement in the natural 
environment on learning and positive mental health of young children will be explored in the coming year.  

 
 

 

Page 37 of 50 of the April 10, 2018 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

 
24 

 

• Hanen Training 
Hanen training provides strategies for helping children in early years classrooms build language and social 
skills, no matter what their learning and communication styles are. The program is delivered by a trained 
Speech Language Pathologist (SLP) or early childhood consultant to teachers and EAs working with young 
children. Inclusive Learning has set a long-term goal to train all District Kindergarten educational assistants 
in Hanen's Learning Language and Loving It (LLLI) program. To date, over 90 EAs, as well as 11 speech 
language assistants have received the training. Once trained, staff are able to work with individual 
children or with small groups, under the direction of an SLP, to facilitate language development. To 
support delivering the program in the District, Inclusive Learning currently has 19 SLPs who are certified to 
teach the LLLI program.   

 
In summary, each of these initiatives responds to areas of need for children, families and the staff who work in 
early years programs. Monitoring of these initiatives will continue to measure their impact on high quality early 
years programming and continue to inform District practice and decision making in the area of early learning.   
 
CONCLUSION: COUNTING THE NEXT STEPS 
Our results tell us that we are on the right track to supporting an excellent start to learning with more children 
entering Grade 1 reaching emotional, social, intellectual and physical developmental milestones. Continuing with 
the work already underway and developing measures to effectively capture the impact of early years programs 
and initiatives on later success in school will be an important focus over the next four years.  
 
Areas for consideration will include: 
 

• positive mental health support for children and families 
• increased family and community engagement 
• continued support of high quality teaching and leadership in early years programs 
• continued review of Pre-Kindergarten Program locations 
• continued attention to early years research, with strategic intent around the OECD’s Promising Practices 

in Supporting Success for Indigenous Students 
 

The early years matter a great deal. Deliberate and strategic efforts by the District will continue to reflect 
collaboration, equitable access to supports and services, high expectations, monitoring areas for growth and 
celebration of the successes of our youngest learners.  
 

 
 

Page 38 of 50 of the April 10, 2018 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



 

 
25 

 

REFERENCES 
Alberta Education. (2006). Standards for the provision of early childhood special education.  

Alberta Education. (2008). Kindergarten program statement.  

Alexander, C. and Ignjatovic, D. (2012, November 27). Early childhood education has widespread and long lasting 
benefits. TD Economics Special Report.  

Blackwell, S. (2015). Impacts of Long Term Forest School Programmes on Children’s Resilience, Confidence and 
Wellbeing.  
 
Center on the Developing Child (2009). Five Numbers to Remember About Early Childhood Development (Brief).  

Center on the Developing Child (2007). Early Childhood Program Effectiveness (InBrief).  

Council of Ministers of Education Canada (CMEC). (2010). CMEC Statement on Play-Based Learning.  
 
daCosta, J. (2008). Longitudinal effects of Full-day Kindergarten through to Grade Six.  
 
Edmonton Public Schools (2017). Early Years Guiding Document.  
 
Makovichuk, L., Hewes, J., Lirette, P., and Thomas, N. (2014). Play, participation, and possibilities: An early 
learning and child care curriculum framework for Alberta.  
 
OECD (2017). Starting Strong 2017: Key OECD Indicators on Early Childhood Education and Care.  
 
Wilson, R. (2008). Nature and Young Children: Encouraging Creative Play and Learning in Natural Environments. 
London, UK: Taylor & Francis.  
 

Page 39 of 50 of the April 10, 2018 Consolidated Board Meeting Package

https://education.alberta.ca/media/1626521/ecs_specialedstds2006.pdf
https://education.alberta.ca/media/563583/kindprogstate2008.pdf
https://www.td.com/document/PDF/economics/special/di1112_EarlyChildhoodEducation.pdf
https://www.td.com/document/PDF/economics/special/di1112_EarlyChildhoodEducation.pdf
https://getchildrenoutdoors.files.wordpress.com/2015/06/impacts-of-long-term-forest-schools-programmes-on-childrens-resilience-confidence-and-wellbeing.pdf
https://getchildrenoutdoors.files.wordpress.com/2015/06/impacts-of-long-term-forest-schools-programmes-on-childrens-resilience-confidence-and-wellbeing.pdf
https://developingchild.harvard.edu/resources/five-numbers-to-remember-about-early-childhood-development/
https://developingchild.harvard.edu/resources/inbrief-early-childhood-program-effectiveness/
http://www.cmec.ca/Publications/lists/publications/attachments/282/play-based-learning_statement_EN.pdf
http://files.epsb.ca/archive/board/may27_08/item04.pdf
https://drive.google.com/file/d/14sjPK5n3FpYsz_WQOh4JazKPL3v8CXUJ/view
https://education.alberta.ca/media/482257/play-participation-and-possibilities-reduced.pdf
https://education.alberta.ca/media/482257/play-participation-and-possibilities-reduced.pdf
https://www.oecd-ilibrary.org/education/starting-strong-2017_9789264276116-en


1 

Recommendation Report 

DATE: April 10, 2018 

TO: Board of Trustees 

FROM: Trustee Ken Gibson 

SUBJECT: Motion re:  Shared Approach to Curriculum Implementation to Alberta Education- 
Next Steps 

REFERENCE: Trustees’ Handbook – Section 5.2.2 – Notices of Motion 

ISSUE 
Notice of motion was served at the March 6, 2018, Board meeting. 

BACKGROUND 
The Board has considered potential initiatives to stretch limited resources further.  Request for 
Information #218 was one such potential initiative. RFI #218 requested:  That Administration provide 
information on the possibility for any efficiencies and savings from taking a shared approach to 
curriculum implementation.  Specifically:  

• how we are building District readiness and capacity to support new provincial curriculum
implementation,

• recommendations for efficient and effective use of District and provincial funds to support the
implementation of new curriculum, and

• possible efficiencies and effectiveness that could be gained from collaborating with other school
districts

The Board received an initial response June 6, 2017, which outlined five recommendations for Board 
consideration. The Board Chair sent the June 6, 2017, Response to Request for Information #218 – 
Shared Approach to Curriculum Implementation to the Minister of Education. 

On September 12, 2017, the Board reviewed the attached report containing recommendations for next 
steps. 

RELATED FACTS 
The March 22, 2018, Provincial Budget reinforced that while education is a priority for the Provincial 
Government, funding remains tight.  Implementation of the new curriculum remains a requirement of 
the District. Acting upon the recommended next steps contained in the September 12, 2017, report 
provides an opportunity to stretch limited resources further and continue to demonstrate the leadership 
in Edmonton Public Schools in preparing for, resourcing and delivering the Alberta curriculum. 

RECOMMENDATION 
That the Board of Trustees act on the advocacy points contained in the September 12, 2017, Board 
report entitled Shared Approach to Curriculum Implementation to Alberta Education. 

Page 40 of 50 of the April 10, 2018 Consolidated Board Meeting Package

http://www.epsb.ca/media/epsb/ourdistrict/policies/TrusteesHandbook2017-2021asofNovember2017.pdf


2 

Recommendation Report 

OPTIONS 
1. Approve the recommendation.
2. Provide feedback and request changes to the recommendation for consideration.

CONSIDERATIONS and ANALYSIS 
Adoption of the next steps offers the opportunity to share best practices and resources for a mandated 
activity.  In the event the Board does not accept the recommendation, the work will proceed without 
the benefit of potential additional resources that would result in a shared, collaborative approach. 

NEXT STEPS 
Upon approval of this recommendation, the Board Chair will write the Minister of Education to share 
the report and to request a meeting of District staff and Alberta Education staff to review each area to 
determine whether the Province will provide resources to support the identified collaborative 
approaches, with focus on resources to support a lead role by Edmonton Public Schools that will 
increase efficiency and effectiveness of implementation. 

ATTACHMENTS 
ATTACHMENT I September 12, 2017, Board report entitled Shared Approach to Curriculum 

Implementation to Alberta Education  

KG:sj 

Page 41 of 50 of the April 10, 2018 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



Response to 

Request for Information Report 

1 

A
TTA

C
H

M
EN

T II

DATE: September 12, 2017 

TO: Board of Trustees 

FROM: Darrel Robertson, Superintendent of Schools 

SUBJECT: Shared Approach to Curriculum Implementation to Alberta Education – Next Steps 
(Response to Request for Information #218) 

ORIGINATOR: Karen Mills, Director, Board and Superintendent Relations 

RESOURCE 
STAFF: Janice Aubry 

REFERENCE: June 6, 2017 Board Meeting – Shared Approach to Curriculum Implementation 
Initial Draft Provincial Curriculum Implementation: District Readiness Plan 2017-
2020 

ISSUE 
That the District provide the June 6, 2017, report in response to Request For Information #218 – Shared 
Approach to Curriculum Implementation to Alberta Education and that Administration identify next 
steps (e.g., funding request to the Province). 

BACKGROUND 
Administration provided a response to the Request for Information #218 – Shared Approach to 
Curriculum Implementation at the June 6, 2017 board meeting. That report included five initial 
recommendations for efficient and effective use of District and provincial resources to support the 
implementation of new curriculum, as well as the (Initial Draft) Provincial Curriculum Implementation: 
District Readiness Plan 2017-2020. 

The District is midway through implementation of the first year of the (Initial Draft) Provincial 
Curriculum Implementation: District Readiness Plan 2017-2020. Through funding provided through 
2016-2017 central access to surplus funds, many preparedness activities have been initiated, including: 

 The hiring of 14.3 FTE curriculum staff

 The provision of professional learning supports (in-service, professional learning days, materials, etc)

 The opportunity for 140 District staff to gather to review the initial draft curriculum materials and
provide feedback to the province

 The training of over 140 teachers on the use of the new District resource selection criteria

 The provision of communications materials and tools to schools

 Collaboration with other school districts to prepare for new curriculum

 

ATTACHMENT l

Page 42 of 50 of the April 10, 2018 Consolidated Board Meeting Package

http://www.epsb.ca/media/epsb/ourdistrict/boardoftrustees/boardmeetings/2016-17/june6/11-SharedApproachtoCurriculumImplementation.pdf
http://www.epsb.ca/media/epsb/ourdistrict/boardoftrustees/boardmeetings/2016-17/june6/11-SharedApproachtoCurriculumImplementation.pdf
file://///CFE04/data$/Curriculum%20and%20Resource%20Support/Admin%20Team/New%20Provincial%20Curriculum/District%20Readiness%20Plan%20(Feb%202017%20Provided%20to%20Minister%20of%20Ed)%20CONFIDENTIAL.pdf
file://///CFE04/data$/Curriculum%20and%20Resource%20Support/Admin%20Team/New%20Provincial%20Curriculum/District%20Readiness%20Plan%20(Feb%202017%20Provided%20to%20Minister%20of%20Ed)%20CONFIDENTIAL.pdf


Response to  

Request for Information Report 

 

2 
 

A
TTA

C
H

M
EN

T II 

 

CURRENT SITUATION  
A targeted outcome of the (Initial Draft) Provincial Curriculum Implementation: District Readiness Plan 
2017-2020 is to build staff confidence and competence. Work to build staff capacity and readiness for 
curriculum implementation continues. For example, curriculum consultants are available to schools to 
support staff in current curriculum and for preparation for new curriculum. Digital materials to support 
staff, students, parents and stakeholders will continue to be made available, including digital learning 
professional development modules and face-to-face opportunities for teachers.  As we look to the time, 
resource materials and staff that will be needed to successfully implement the new curriculum, it is 
apparent that funding above what is normally allotted for resource development and staff support will 
be required. 
 
The following five recommendations were outlined and provided to Board as part of the June 6, 2017 
Response to Request for Information #218 – Shared Approach to Curriculum Implementation. Each 
recommendation below now includes potential next steps for Board consideration: 
 
1. That Alberta Education continue to engage teachers and collaborate with school districts throughout 

the development and implementation processes, including during the development of an 
implementation and resourcing strategy.  
 
NEXT STEPS FOR BOARD CONSIDERATION:  

 That the Board urge Alberta Education to meaningfully and in a timely manner: 
o share information with districts 
o engage districts in collaboratively developing an implementation plan, including strategies 

for staff development and classroom resourcing. 
 
2. That funding for professional learning supports be directed to school districts, with a focus on 

collaboration, the building and sharing of expertise, and the development of digital tools to support 
job-embedded, timely access to information, professional learning, and resources.   
 
NEXT STEPS FOR BOARD CONSIDERATION: 

 That the Board advocate for future funding to cover staff release time for learning, planning and 
collaboration.  

 That the Board advocate for current and future funding for the development of quality digital 
learning tools that will enable teachers to receive information and support in their school, 
catchment and classroom environments. The goal is to ensure that teachers can learn 
collaboratively in their own teaching contexts and are enabled to access knowledge and skill 
development supports “anytime” and “anywhere”. 

 That the Board advocate for support for the development of quality resources by Alberta school 
districts, as opposed to the contracting of for-profit publishers or third-party developers. 

 
3. That Alberta Education begin immediately to collaborate with school districts to identify, gather 

and/or develop any needed new resources (human, print, digital, as well as curriculum content, 
classroom assessment and professional learning resources).  
 
NEXT STEPS FOR BOARD CONSIDERATION: 

 That the Board urge Alberta Education to engage in collaboratively developing an 
implementation plan, including strategies for staff development, and classroom  resourcing. 

Page 43 of 50 of the April 10, 2018 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



Response to  

Request for Information Report 

 

3 
 

A
TTA

C
H

M
EN

T II 

 

 That the Board advocate for funding to support the development of resources in preparation for 
new curriculum (for example, District staff are currently revising key District mathematics 
resources in preparation for the new curriculum). 

 
4. That Alberta Education begin to support action research initiatives in school districts immediately, to 

continue enabling districts to build capacity and to investigate the most effective means and 
processes through which large-scale curriculum and pedagogical change will occur.  
 
NEXT STEPS FOR BOARD CONSIDERATION: 

 That the Board urge Alberta Education to collaborate with districts to initiate and fund local 
action research projects that could inform districts and the province regarding the most 
effective processes through which large-scale curriculum and pedagogical change will occur. 

 
5. That Alberta Education provide support to strengthen collaboration and sharing among school 

districts, and with key educational partners.   
 
NEXT STEPS FOR BOARD CONSIDERATION: 

 That the Board urge Alberta Education to engage with districts to identify effective mechanisms 
for collaboration and sharing among school districts in preparation for curriculum change, then 
provide support to implement these mechanisms. 

 

KEY POINTS 

 The Board Chair sent the Response to Request for Information #218 – Shared Approach to 
Curriculum Implementation to the Minister of Education. 

 The June 6, 2017 Response to Request for Information #218 – Shared Approach to Curriculum 
Implementation outlined five recommendations for Board consideration 

 There are next steps that the Board could consider in its advocacy for curriculum preparedness 
support. These next steps are based on the five initial recommendations and content from the 
(Initial Draft) Provincial Curriculum Implementation: District Readiness Plan 2017-2020. The next 
steps for Board consideration, as outline in this report, include urging Alberta Education to continue 
to communicate and collaborate with districts, to involve districts in their strategic plans for 
implementation, to work with districts on action research and to fund resource development and 
staff release time. 

 
ATTACHMENTS and APPENDICES 
JA:ha 

Page 44 of 50 of the April 10, 2018 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



1 

Recommendation Report 

DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

ORIGINATOR: 

RESOURCE 
STAFF: 

REFERENCE: 

April 10, 2018 

Board of Trustees 

Darrel Robertson, Superintendent of Schools 

2019-20 School Year Calendar  

Dr. Lorne Parker, Assistant Superintendent, Infrastructure 

Bob Morter, David Salmon 

GCA.BP – Approval of the School Year Calendar 
GCA.AR – The School Year Calendar 

ISSUE 
Board Policy GCA.BP – Approval of the School Year Calendar requires that the Board of Trustees approve 
calendars for two years following the current school year.    

BACKGROUND 
The school year calendar is designed with a number of considerations many of which are included in 
Administrative Regulation GCA.AR – The School Year Calendar. This regulation includes requirements 
such as the fact that winter recess is two weeks long and must include December 24 and January 2. 
Other considerations include the draft Diploma Exam dates, Provincial Achievement Test dates, 
Advanced Placement and International Baccalaureate exam dates. Finally, the calendar is designed to 
balance the length of first and second semesters, and to align with the terms and conditions of the pilot 
program on the school year calendar within the Alberta Teachers’ Association collective agreement. 

RELATED FACTS 
Key points of the draft 2019-20 School Year Calendar include:  
• A start date for students of September 3, 2019, following the Labour Day long weekend;
• A fall break of three days composed of: Remembrance Day, one board approved non-instructional

day and one day in lieu for reporting;
• A total of two days in lieu for reporting
• Five Professional Development days
• Balanced first and second semesters

RECOMMENDATION 
That the attached 2019-20 District Calendar be approved. 

OPTIONS 
Based on the information provided in this report, the following options are considered most 
appropriate: 
1. Approve the attached 2019-20 school year calendar.
2. Approve the attached 2019-20 school year calendar with modifications.

Page 45 of 50 of the April 10, 2018 Consolidated Board Meeting Package

http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/g/gca-bp/
https://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/g/gca-ar/


 

2 

Recommendation Report 

CONSIDERATIONS and ANALYSIS 
The attached calendar was developed in alignment with a number of District board policies and 
administrative regulations, most notably GCA.BP and GCA.AR. In addition, the calendar is aligned with 
the current Letter of Understanding - “Pilot Project on Revised School Year Calendar” between the 
District and the local of the Alberta Teachers’ Association. As such, the calendar is designed around an 
annual figure for teachers’ instructional duties of approximately 890 hours, but no more than 896.2 
hours annually, versus a maximum weekly maximum for instructional minutes.   
 
The proposed calendar maintains the 183 instructional days present in the 2015-16, 2016-17, 2017-18 
and 2018-19 school year calendars. Building the calendar around the same number of days results in a 
greater consistency of school hours of operation from year to year, allowing schools for the most part to 
retain existing timetables for students and staff. This in turn assists parents with creating consistency of 
drop off and pick up times. Additionally, efficiency is created in Student Transportation with routing and 
timing of buses.   
 
It is important to note that the proposed calendar shifts spring break a week earlier than is mandated 
through the administrative regulation. This shift is due to an overlap between the typical spring break 
period and the April diploma exam administration. As a result this proposed calendar will require the 
suspension of a section of the administrative regulation GCA.AR - The School Year Calendar. The 
Superintendent of Schools will address this suspension in the event the calendar is approved. Should the 
decision be made to shift spring break, it will be important to approve the calendar as soon as possible 
to minimize any issues of schools or families planning events around spring break 2020. 
 
NEXT STEPS 
Upon approval of the draft 2019-20 school year calendar, the Superintendent of Schools will suspend 
Section A.5 of GCA.AR - The School Year Calendar. This will be followed by the publication of the 
calendar on the District website. 
 
ATTACHMENTS and APPENDICES  
ATTACHMENT I  Draft 2019-20 School Year Calendar 
 
BM:il 

Page 46 of 50 of the April 10, 2018 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



epsb.ca

D18  February 13, 2018

2019–20 District Calendar – DRAFT
APPROVED HOLIDAYS 
Labour Day September 2

Thanksgiving October 14

Remembrance Day November 11

Winter Break
December  23– 
January 3

Christmas Day December 25

Boxing Day December 26

New Year’s Day January 1

Family Day February 17

Teachers’ Convention February 27–28

Spring Break March 23–27

Good Friday April 10

Easter Monday April 13

Victoria Day May 18

First Operational Day 
(No Students)

August 30

First Day of Classes September 3

Last Day of Classes June 26

Last Operational Day June 29

AUGUST • 2019
S M T W T F S

1 2 3

4 5 6 7 8 9 10

11 12 13 14 15 16 17

18 19 20 21 22 23 24

25 26 27 28 29 30 31

SEPTEMBER • 2019
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

8 9 10 11 12 13 14

15 16 17 18 19 20 21

22 23 24 25 26 27 28

29 30

OCTOBER • 2019
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5

6 7 8 9 10 11 12

13 14 15 16 17 18 19

20 21 22 23 24 25 26

27 28 29 30 31

NOVEMBER • 2019
S M T W T F S

1 2

3 4 5 6 7 8 9

10 11 12 13 14 15 16

17 18 19 20 21 22 23

24 25 26 27 28 29 30

DECEMBER • 2019
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

8 9 10 11 12 13 14

15 16 17 18 19 20 21

22 23 24 25 26 27 28

29 30 31

JANUARY • 2020
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11

12 13 14 15 16 17 18

19 20 21 22 23 24 25

26 27 28 29 30 31

FEBRUARY • 2020
S M T W T F S

1

2 3 4 5 6 7 8

9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22

23 24 25 26 27 28 29

MARCH • 2020
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

8 9 10 11 12 13 14

15 16 17 18 19 20 21

22 23 24 25 26 27 28

29 30 31

APRIL • 2020
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11

12 13 14 15 16 17 18

19 20 21 22 23 24 25

26 27 28 29 30

MAY • 2020
S M T W T F S

1 2

3 4 5 6 7 8 9

10 11 12 13 14 15 16

17 18 19 20 21 22 23

24 25 26 27 28 29 30

31

JUNE • 2020
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6

7 8 9 10 11 12 13

14 15 16 17 18 19 20

21 22 23 24 25 26 27

28 29 30

JULY • 2020
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11

12 13 14 15 16 17 18

19 20 21 22 23 24 25

26 27 28 29 30 31

LEGEND 
PUBLIC HOLIDAY

PD DAY (NO STUDENTS)

FIRST/LAST DAY OF CLASSES

OPERATIONAL DAY (NO STUDENTS)

TEACHERS’ CONVENTION

TEACHERS’ DAY IN LIEU (NO TEACHERS OR STUDENTS)

BOARD APPROVED NON-INSTRUCTIONAL DAY 
(NO TEACHERS OR STUDENTS)

WINTER/SPRING BREAK

ATTACHMENT I

Page 47 of 50 of the April 10, 2018 Consolidated Board Meeting Package



Response to 
Request for Information Report 

DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

ORIGINATOR: 

RESOURCE 
STAFF: 

REFERENCE: 

April 10, 2018 

Board of Trustees 

Darrel Robertson, Superintendent of Schools 

Lower Cost or No Cost Transportation 
(Response to Request for Information #015) 

Dr. Lorne Parker, Assistant Superintendent, Infrastructure

Alison Cheesbrough, Geoff Holmes, Christopher Wright 

March 20, 2018, Board meeting   

ISSUE 
The following information was requested: 
What measures does the District have in place for low-income families to access lower-cost or no-cost 
transportation services, both for yellow bus service and Edmonton Transportation System? 

BACKGROUND 
Student Transportation reviews bus pass fees on an annual basis and submits the next year’s fee 
schedule to the Board of Trustees for approval, typically in May (Attachment I). Bus fees are set based 
on a number of factors, such as cost of providing transportation, provincial funding provided, and fee 
increase guidelines set out in Bill 1:  An Act to Reduce School Fees. 

Regulatory changes implemented following the passing of Bill 1, provided parents whose children attend 
their designated school and reside more than 2.4 kilometres away and those who attend a designated 
special needs program with no-charge yellow bus passes and for transit users, the ability to buy lower-
cost Edmonton Transit Service bus passes. 

CURRENT SITUATION 
Fees for bus passes are collected by school administration, and any decisions regarding waiving fees for 
individual families is made at the school level following the fee waiver process outlined in Administrative 
Regulation HNB.AR – School Fees. In 2016–2017, approximately $500,000 of bus pass fees were waived. 
This number is expected to decrease in 2017–2018 following the implementation of regulatory changes 
resulting from Bill 1. 

KEY POINTS 
• Bill 1 provides no-cost yellow busing to students attending their designated school who reside more

than 2.4 kilometres away or who attend a designated special needs program, regardless of distance.
• Schools are able to waive fees for individual students based on the process in Administrative

Regulation HNB.AR – Student Fees.
• Administration will present a recommendation regarding transportation fees to Trustees prior to the

2018–2019 school year.

ATTACHMENTS and APPENDICES 
ATTACHMENT I 2017–2018 Student Transportation Fee Schedule 

GH:ks

Page 48 of 50 of the April 10, 2018 Consolidated Board Meeting Package

http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/h/hnb-ar/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/h/hnb-ar/


epsb.ca

2017-18 Student Transportation Fees

KINDERGARTEN

There is no charge for Kindergarten students applying for Yellow Bus transportation.

GRADE 1 to 6 GRADE 7 to 12

Yellow Bus 
(Monthly)

Yellow Bus 
(Annual)

ETS 
(Monthly)

ETS 
(Annual)

Yellow Bus 
(Monthly)

Yellow Bus 
(Annual)

ETS 
(Monthly)

ETS 
(Annual)

Attending their designated school

Students attending their designated school 
and reside 2.4 km away or more

$0 _ $18 $180 $0 _ $18 $180

Students attending their designated school 
and reside less than 2.4 km away

$30 $240 $30 $240 $55 $470 $55 $470

Grade 7-9 students continuing  
to attend the same designated school as 
attended in elementary and reside less 
than 2.4 km away

_ _ _ _ $30 $240 _ _

Not attending their designated school

Students not attending their designated 
school regardless of distance

_ _ $55 $470 _ _ $55 $470

Students attending bilingual or immersion 
program

$30 $240 $30 $240 _ _ _ _

Students attending other alternative  
program (not bilingual or immersion)

$55 $470 $55 $470 _ _ _ _

Special education needs curb service

Pre-Kindergarten, Kindergarten and  
students from Grade 1 to 12 with special 
education needs who are unable to use 
regular bus routes

$0 $0 _ _ $0 $0 _ _

Conditional riders (Kindergarten to Grade 12)

$55 _ _ _ $55 _ _ _

Replacement cost (lost or stolen)

$6 _ $73 _ $6 _ $73 _

Family maximum (applies to Grade 1 to 6 only)

Students attending designated school $72 $570 $72 $570 – – – –

Students attending bilingual or immersion 
program 

$72 $570 $72 $570 – – – –

Students attending other alternative  
program (not bilingual or immersion)

$135 $1149 $135 $1149 – – – –

ANNUAL PASS
• Annual yellow bus passes look different than monthly passes. 
• Annual passes must be paid in full at the school office by September 15, 2017. 

EDMONTON TRANSIT PASSES
• Students enrolled at a District elementary, junior high or senior high school can purchase an ETS bus pass at their school. 
• Passes are valid for unlimited travel on Edmonton Transit, including statutory holidays. 
• Students can buy a replacement ETS pass at their school, or request a free replacement for a damaged ETS pass by turning in an identifiable piece of the damaged pass.

The following fees apply to students that are eligible for transportation.  
For more information, please contact Student Transportation at 780-429-8585 or talk to your school. 

C17 - August 2017

ATTACHMENT I

Page 49 of 50 of the April 10, 2018 Consolidated Board Meeting Package

http://www.epsb.ca/
http://www.epsb.ca/
http://www.epsb.ca/


Information Report 

DATE: April 10, 2018 

TO: Board of Trustees 

FROM: Darrel Robertson, Superintendent of Schools 

SUBJECT: Bereavement 

ORIGINATOR: Angela Anderson, Chief Human Resources Officer, Human Resources 

RESOURCE 
STAFF: Mrinalini Mella 

REFERENCE: AEBC.AR Acknowledging Student, Staff and Trustee Deaths and Bereavements 

Ms. Susan Mitchell passed away on March 22, 2018, at the age of 62 years. Ms. Mitchell was hired to the 
District as a consultant in August 2005, and spent her 12-year career working with Inclusive Learning. 
Ms. Mitchell was on a leave of absence at the time of her passing. She is survived by her son, Robert. 

A memorial service was held at Grace United Church on March 29, 2018. 

AA:mm 

Page 50 of 50 of the April 10, 2018 Consolidated Board Meeting Package

http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/a/aebc-ar/

	Agenda
	01 - March 20, 2018 - DRAFT - Board Minutes
	02 - Report 4 of the Special Caucus Committee - From the meeting held March 20, 2018
	03 - Strategic Plan Update - Priority 1 Goal One - An Excellent Start to Learning
	Board Report Early Years 10Apr2018
	Final Early Years Strategic Plan 10Apr2018

	04 - Motion re Shared Approach to Curriculum Implementation to Alberta Education - Next Steps
	April 10, 2018 - Motion re Shared Approach to Curriculum Implementation to Alberta Education - Next Steps
	ATTACHMENT l

	05 - 2019-20 School Year Calendar
	06 - Lower Cost or No Cost Transportation
	07 - Bereavement



